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STOCK COMPANY
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Head office: No. 255B, Pham Van Thuan Street, Tan Mai Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong
Mai, Vietnam.
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The person conducting the disclosure of information: Bui Thi Loan - Authorized person
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Type of published information:
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24 hour-disclosure 72 hour-disclosure Extraordinary disclosure

Disclosure on request Regular disclosure

Contents of disclosure: Documents, Minutes, Resolutions of the 2025 Annual General

Meeting of Shareholders.

On April 25, 2025, Dong Nai Building Material and Fuel Joint Stock Company held the
2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and approved the following contents:

Report on the Board of Directors' operation in 2024 and direction of

Content'§; activities in 2023,

Income statement in 2024 and Report on the business plan for 2025 of the
Content 2: ; .

Company's Executive Board.
Content 3: Report on approval of the 2024 audited financial statement.

Report on settlement of remuneration for the Board of Directors and the
Content 4: Board of Supervisors in 2024 and the plan for payment of remuneration
for the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors in 2025,

Content 5: Report on the plan for profit distribution and dividend payment in 2024,




plan for profit distribution and dividend payment in 2025.

Report of the Board of Supervisors at the 2025 Annual General Meeting

Catttent & of Shareholders.
™. Report on the selection of an auditing unit to review the semi-annual
CameeRk.if financial statements and audit the 2025 financial statements.

This information has been published on the Company's website at the link:

hitps://chatdotdongnai.com

We pledge that the information stated above is true and fully responsible to the law for
the content of the published information.

Yours respecttully.

Altac}.:!d Dnc;mem: " ik THE PERSD! UTHGRIEED TO
- Minutes of meeting, Resolution of the e ¥ IATION
2025 Amnual  General  Meeting  of oA

Shareholders.
- Reports and documenis related to the

Creneral Meeting.




DONG NAI BUILDING MATERIAL AND SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No.: 256/2025/NQ - PHRCD Bien Hoa, April 25, 2025

RESOLUTION
THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
DONG NAI BUILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH 14 issued on June 17, 2020, and
its amendments and supplements;

Pursuant to the Certificate of Business Registration of Dong Nai Building Material
and Fuel Joint Stock Company, with enterprise code of 3600661303, first issued by the
Department of Planning and Investment of Dong Nai Province on January 6, 2004,
changed for the 21st time on November 21, 2024;

Pursuant to the Charter of organization and operation of Dong Nai Building
Material and Fuel Joint Stock Company;

Pursuant to the Minutes of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No.:
255/2025/BB - PHBCD dated April 25, 2025 of Dong Nai Building Material and Fuel

Joint Stock Company.

RESOLVES:

Article 1: Approve Report on the Board of Directors' operation in 2024 and
direction of activities in 2025.
(Detailed content according to attached Report No. 246/BC-HDQOT/2025/DBFC
dated April 25, 2025 of the Company's Board of Directors).
BUSINESS RESULTS IN 2024

IMPLEMENTATION
NO. ITEMS UNIT IN 2024
| Revenue from sa%es of goods and Billion dong 3,420
provision of services
5 | Total sales volume of all types of | o figers 192.5
petroleum
Fuel gas Tons 1,581
4 | Lubricant Liters i
g | Accounting profit before corporate Billion dong 20.28
income tax
6 | Profits after corporate income tax Billion dong 16.14
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7 | Dividend distribution Billion dong 0
BUSINESS PLAN IN 2025
NO. ITEMS UNIT PLAN IN 2025
1 Revenue from sales of goods and provision Billion dong 3.605
of services
2 | Total sales volume of all types of petroleum | Million liters 197.62
3 | Fuel gas Tons 1,600
4 | Lubricant liters 180,000
$ | Total accounting profit before CIT Billion dong 20.6
6 | Profits after corporate income tax Billion dong 16.5
7 | Dividend distribution Billion dong 0

Number of shares voting Approval is: 14,306,192 shares, daccounting for
99.68% of the total number of voting shares attending and voting at the
General Meeting.

Article 2: Approve Income statement in 2024 and Report on the business plan for

2025 of the Company's Executive Board.

(Detailed content according to attached Report No. 247/BC-BDH/2025/DBFC
dated April 25, 2025 of the Company's Executive Board)

Number of shares voting Approval is: 14,352,292 shares, accounting for
100% of the total number of voting shares attending and voting al the General
Meeting.

Article 3: Approve the Report on approval of the 2024 Audited Finaneial

Statements.

(Detailed content according fo attached Report No. 248/TTr/2025/DBFC
dated April 25, 2023 and 2024 audited financial statements).

Number of shares voting Approval is: 14,352,292 shares, accounting for
100% of the total number of voting shares attending and voting at the General
Meeting.

Article 4; Approve Report on settlement of remuneration for the Board of Directors and

the Board of Supervisors in 2024 and the plan for payment of remuneration for
the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors in 2025.

(Detailed content according to attached Report No. 249/TTr/2025/DBFC
dated April 25, 2025).
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Article 5:

Number of shares voting Approval is: 14,352,092 shares, accounting for
99.999% of the total number of voting shares attending and voting at the
General Meeting.

Approve Report on the plan for profit distribution and dividend payment
in 2024, plan for profit distribution and dividend payment in 2025,

(Detailed content according to attached Report No. 250/TTr/2025/DBFC
dated April 25, 2025).

5.1. Profit distribution and dividend payment in 2024:
Unit: VND
NO. Category/Items Amount
I | Undistributed profit after tax as of December 31, 2024 21,591,413,186
1 | Profit after tax in 2024: 16,142,979,012
5 Undistributed profit after tax from previous years carried 5.448.434.174
forward
11 | Appropriation of funds in 2024 807,148,951
1 2024 Executive Board Bonus Fund (5% of 2024 after-tax 807.148.951
profit)
IT1 | Remaining profit after appropriation of funds in 2024: 20,784,264,235
IV | Dividends: 0
Total remaining undistributed profit is used to
V | supplement investment capital (carried over to next 20,784,264,235
year)
Number of shares voting Approval is: 12,971,988 shares, accounting for
90.38% of the fotal number of voting sharves attending and voting al the
General Meeting.
52. Profit distribution and dividend payment plan in 2025
Unit: VND
_N'D. ! Category/Items Amount
I | Undistributed after-tax profits 16,498,000,000
Deduction from 2025 Executive Board Bonus Fund
4
| (5% of 2025 after-tax profit) gkt
11 | Dividend distribution 0
Number of shares voting Approval is: 12,179,507 shares, accounting for
8§4.86% of the total number of veting shares attending and voting at the
(reneral Meeting.
Article 6: Approve Report of the Board of Supervisors at the 2025 Annual General

Meeting of Shareholders,
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(Detailed content according to attached Report No. 251 /BKS dared April 23,
2025 of the Board of Supervisors).

Number of shares voting Approval is: 14,316,192 shares, accounting for
99.75% of the total number of voting shares attending and voting at the
Greneral Meeting.

Article 7: Approve the Report on the selection of an auditing unit to review the
semi-annual financial statements and audit the 2025 financial statements.

The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes the Board of Supervisors to
decide on the selection of one of the following auditing companies as

proposed by the Board of Supervisors and assigns the Company Director to
s1gn a service coniract to review the Semi-annual Financial Statements and

audit the 2025 Financial Statements:

- AFC Vietnam Auditing Company Limited

- A&C Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd

- AAC Auditing and Accounting Company Limited

- CPA Vietnam Auditing Company Limited f'm \
(Detailed content according to attached Report No. 232/TTi Ff.?ﬂ.?jfﬂgp
dated April 25, 20235),

Number of shares voting Approval is: 14,352 292 shares, accounting for 100% of
the total number of voting shares attending and voting al the General Meeting,

Article 8: This Resolution is approved by the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Sharcholders of Dong Nai Building Material and Fuel Joint Stock Company
and takes effect from April 25, 2025. The Board of Directors, the Board of
Supervisors and the Board of Management are responsible for implementing

this Resolution./,

FOR GENERAL MEETING OF
SWEHGLDERS

Recipiens:

- General Meeting of Shaveholders;

- Members of Board of Directors, Board of
Supervisors,

- Board of Management,

- Saved ar Board of Directors, Administration -
Organization Depariment.

NGUYEN THANH HOA
CHAIRMAN OF BOARD OF
DIRECTORS
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DONG NAI BUILDING MATERIAL SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness
No.: 255/2025/BB - BHPCD Bien Hoa, April 25, 2025
MINUTES OF

THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
DONG NAI BUILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY

. INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY
1. Name of the Company: Dong Nai Building Material and Fuel Joint Stock Company.
2, Certificate of Business Registration of Joint Stock Company with enterprise code

3600661303 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Dong Nai
Province for the first time on January 6, 2004, changed for the 21st time on
November 21, 2024,

1. Address of Head Office: No. 2558 Pham Van Thuan, Tan Mai Ward, Bien Hoa
City, Dong Nai Province, Vietnam

1. TIME AND VENUE OF THE GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Time: 07:30 on April 25, 2025

2. Venue: Dong Nai Hotel Hall, No. 57 Pham Van Thuan Street, Tan Mai Ward, Bien
Hoa City, Dong Nai

III. PARTICIPANTS

1.  Sharcholders, shareholders’ representatives,

2. All members of the Board of Directors (BOD), Board of Supervisors (BOS) and

Executive Board of the Company.

IV. OPENING SECTION

1. In order for the General Meeting to proceed in accordance with regulations, Ms. Vu
Thi Mai Phuong - Head of the Shareholder Eligibility Verification Board presented
the Report on the verification of shareholders' eligibility to attend the General
Meeting: At 08:30, there are 35 shareholders and authorized representatives present,
representing 14,352,290 shares, accounting for 90.56% of total voting shares/total
votes of the Company.
Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises, the Charter of organization and operation of the
Company, the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (AGM) 1s eligible to

proceed.
2. The General Meeting of Shareholders elected the Presidium consisting of:

—_
"

~ Ms. Nguyen Thanh Hoa - Chairperson of the Board of Directors - Chairperson of



the General Meeting

Mr. Nguyen Hoang Linh - Member of Board of Directors, Director - Member

Mr. Le Minh Khue - Independent Member of the Board of Directors - Member

The members of the Presidium are unanimously approved by the General Meeling
of Shareholders by raising Voting Cards with 100% of the total Approval votes of
all shareholders attending the meeting and voting.

The General Meeting of Shareholders elected the Secretariat consisting of:

Ms. Bui Thi Loan - Company Secretary - Head of Board

Ms. Bui Thi Hong Nhung - Accounting Department Staff - Member

The members of the Secretariat are unanimously approved by the General Meeting
of Shareholders by raising Voting Cards with 100% of the total Approval votes of
all shareholders attending the meeting and voting.

The General Meeting of Sharcholders elected the Vote Counting Committee
consisting of:

Ms. Vu Thi Mai Phuong - Head of Board of Supervisors - Head of Board

Mr. Nong Quang Dinh - Head of Sales Department - Member

Mr. Nguyen Hoang Thai Trong - Deputy Head of Accounting Department -
Member

Mr. Nguyen Thanh Hai - Accountant - Member

The members of the Vote Counting Committee are unanimously approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders by raising Voting Cards with 100% of the total
Approval votes of all shareholders attending the meeting and voting.

Mr. Nong Quang Dinh - on behalf of the Organizing Board presents the Regulations
for organizing the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company.
The Regulations for organizing the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
are unanimously approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders by raising
Voting Cards with 100% of the total Approval votes of all shareholders attending
the meeting and voting.

Approve the Agenda of the General Meeting!

Mr. Nong Quang Dinh - on behalf of the Organizing Board, announces the contents
of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, specifically:

Report on the Board of Directors' operation in 2024 and direction

Content 1 1 ¢ ctivities in 2025.

e

Content 2 Income statement in 2024 and Report on the business plan for

2025 of the Company's Executive Board.
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Report on approval of the 2024 Audited Financial Statements

Content3 | . iached with the 2024 audited financial statements).

Report on settlement of remuneration for the Board of Directors

st and the Board of Supervisors in 2024 and the plan for payment of
OUER remuneration for the Board of Directors and the Board of

Supervisors in 2023,

Report on the plan for profit distribution and dividend payment in

Content 5 | 5004 plan for profit distribution and dividend payment in 2023,

Report of the Board of Supervisors at the 2025 Annual General

Content 6 Meeting of Shareholders.

Report on the selection of an auditing unit to review the semi-
Content 7 | annual financial statements and audit the 2025 financial
statements.

The agenda of the General Meeting was unanimously approved by the General
Meeting of Shareholders by raising Voting Cards with 100% of the total Approval
votes of all shareholders attending the meeting and voting.

CONTENT OF REPORTS

Ms. Nguyen Thanh Hoa - Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company
presents the Report on the Board of Directors' operation in 2024 and direction of
activities in 2025 (See details in attached report).

Mr. Nguyen Hoang Linh - Director of the Company presents the Income stalement
in 2024 and Report on the business plan for 2025 of the Company's Executive
Board (See details in attached repori).

Ms. Vu Thi Kim Thanh - Chief Accountant of the Company presents the Report on
approval of the 2024 Audited Financial Statements (See defails in attached Report
and 2024 audited financial statements).

Ms. Vu Thi Kim Thanh - Chief Accountant of the Company presents the Report on
settlement of remuneration for the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors
in 2024 and the plan for payment of remuneration for the Board of Directors and the
Board of Supervisors in 2025 (See details in attached report).

Ms. Vu Thi Kim Thanh - Chief Accountant of the Company presents the Report on
the profit distribution and dividend payment plan in 2024, the profit distribution and
dividend payment plan in 2025 (See details in attached report).

Ms. Vu Thi Mai Phuong - Head of the Company's Board of Supervisors presents the
Report of the Board of Supervisors at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
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Sharecholders (See details in attached report),

7. Ms. Vu Thi Mai Phuong - Head of the Company’s Board of Supervisors presents the
Report on the selection of an auditing unit to review the semi-annual financial
statements and audit the 2025 financial statements (See details in attached repori).

V1. DISCUSSION

1. Opinions of Shareholders:

Opinion 1: Mr. Pham Van Nho - Shareholder
- Request explanation of short-term financial investment of 258 billion dong used as
collateral for bank loans as of December 31, 2024,

. More clearly analyze the use of shori-term loans to supplement working capital for
the company's business operations.

- What are the opinions and recommendations of the Board of Supervisors on short-
term investments and use of loans by the Executive Board?

- Currently, the bad debt is over 11 billion dong, of which 3.9 billion dong was
embezzled. The Board of Supervisors, based on its functions and tasks, explains and
evaluates the effectiveness of internal control activities, risk management in debt
management according to current regulations, to avoid bad debt.

- According to the financial statements, 38 billion dong is prepaid to Viet Oil
Company, there are exceptions and notes on the receivables payable to Viet Nhat
Company. The Executive Board proposes solutions, implementation measures and
responsibilities of related individuals and units

- Request to explain why the company does not pay dividends.

Opinion_2: Ms. Vu Thi Hong Thanh - Shareholder: The company is depositing 258
billion dong while borrowing 512 billion dong, request the Executive Board to explain
the amount of 258 hillion dong. The receivables and payables are very high, what
measures does the Executive Board have to control bad debts.

Opinion _3: Mr. Hoang Anh Tuan - Sharcholder: The Executive Board researches and
installs electric charging stations at large and conveniently located gas stations Lo
increase revenue and efficiency in the company’s business operations,

2. Answers of the Board of Directors and Executive Board:

For shori-term financial investment of 258 billion dong: Currently, the Executive
Board uses 258 billion dong as collateral to borrow 512 billion dong from the bank to
serve the company's business operations.

- For inventory of 175 billion dong: The company complies with state regulations on

inventory storage time for distributors.




. Bad debt: The embezzled amount of 3.9 billion dong occurred in previous years and
has been provisioned.
. Dividend distribution: The company has issued additional shares from equity in
2023. Currently, the company has not paid dividends but retains them as a resource for
the company’s development.
- For customer debt control: currenﬂ}r; the company does not purchase future goods
from the suppliers. Private customer debt: comply with sales for immediate payment and
sales with guarantees to prevent risks. Accounts receivable are only permitted for certain
government clients.
- For debts to Xuyen Viet Oil Company: Xuyen Viet Oil has committed to repay the
debt by transferring the right to use to the Company. The Executive Board has been
carrying out the necessary procedures to resolve the above issue. The Executive Board
has also worked and taken over a Xuyen Viet Qil store for business and the store is
operating stably, achieving very positive output.
. For the investment in charging stations at retail gas stations with favorable
locations: The company is developing a plan and evaluating the effectiveness related to
the investment in charging stations.

_ Answers of the Board of Supervisors: The Board of Supervisors requests the
Executive Board to use financial investments and loans effectively, safely and in

accordance with regulations.

VII. VOTING

1. Ms. Vu Thi Mai Phuong - Head of the Vote Counting Committee guides the
General Meeting to vote by votes to approve issues according to the provisions of
the approved General Meeting Organization Regulations.

2. The Chairman directs the General Meeting to vote by voles to approve issues at the
2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

3. Sharcholders and authorized representatives attending the Meeting vote by votes to
approve the contents presented at the General Meeting.

4. The Vote Counting Committee shall conduct the vote counting according to
regulations.

5. Ms. Vu Thi Mai Phuong - Head of the Shareholder Eligibility Verification Board
presents the Report on the verification of shareholders' eligibility attending the
General Meeting at the time of voting on the agenda items of the General Meeting:
at the time of 10 hours 30 minutes, with 37 shareholders and authorized
representatives present, representing 14,352,292 shares, accounting for 90.56% of
the total number of voting shares of the Company.
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VIIL RESULTS OF VOTING AT THE GENERAL MEETING

Ms. Vu Thi Mai Phuong - Head of the Vote Counting Committee announces the
voting results of the General Meeting contents as follows:

Report on the Board of Directors' operation in 2024 and direction of activities
in 2025.

Approval: 14,306,192 shares, accounting for 99.68% of the tolal number
of votes attending and voting at the General Meeting.

Disapproval: 46,100 shares, accounting for 0.32% of the total number of
votes attending and voting at the General Meeting.

No opinion: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of votes
attending and voting at the General Meeting.

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises 2020, the Company Charter, and the
Regulations on organizing the General Meeting, this content is unanimously
approved by the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders with a rate of
99.68% of the total number of Approval votes of all shareholders attending the
meeting and voting,

Income statement in 2024 and Report on the business plan for 2025 of the
Company's Executive Board.

Approval: 14,352,292 shares, accounting for 100% of the total number of

votes attending and voting at the General Meeting.

Disapproval: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of votes
attending and voting at the General Meeting.

No opinion: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of votes
attending and voting at the General Meeting,

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises 2020, the Company Charter, and the

Regulations on organizing the General Meeting, this content is unanimously

approved by the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders with a rate of 100%

of the total number of Approval votes of all sharcholders attending the meeting and

voting.

Report on approval of the 2024 audited financial statement.

Approval: 14,352,292 shares, accounting for 100% of the total number of
votes attending and voting at the General Meeting,

Disapproval: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of votes
attending and voting at the General Meeting.

No opinion: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of votes

attending and voting at the General Meeting.

A . M



%

5.2

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises 2020, the Company Charter, and the

Regulations on organizing the General Meeting, this content is unanimously

approved by the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders with a rate of 100%

of the total number of Approval votes of all sharcholders attending the meeting and

voling.

Report on settlement of remuneration for the Board of Directors and the

Board of Supervisors in 2024 and the plan for payment of remuneration for

the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors in 2025.

Approval: 14,352,092 shares, accounting for 99.999% of the total
number of votes attending and voting at the General Meeting.

Disapproval: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of votes
attending and voting at the General Meeting.

No opinion: 200 shares, accounting for 0.001% of the total number of
voles attending and voting at the General Meeting.

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises 2020, the Company Charter, and the

Regulations on organizing the General Meeting, this content is unanimously

approved by the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders with a rate of

99.999% of the total number of Approval votes of all shareholders attending the

meeting and voting.

Report on the plan for profit distribution and dividend payment in 2024, plan

for profit distribution and dividend payment in 2025.

Profit distribution and dividend payment plan in 2024:

Approval: 12,971 988 shares, accounting for 90.38% of the total number
of votes attending and voting at the General Meeting,

Disapproval: 1,356,321 shares, accounting for 9.45% of the total number of
yotes attending and voting at the General Meeting,

No opinion: 23,983 shares, accounting for 0,17% of the total number of
votes attending and voting at the General Meeting.

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises 2020, the Company Charter, and the

Regulations on organizing the General Meeting, this content is unanimously

approved by the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders with a rate of

90.38% of the total number of Approval votes of all shareholders attending the

meeting and voting.

Profit distribution and dividend payment plan in 2025:

Approval: 12,179,507 shares, accounting for 84.86% of the total number
of votes attending and voting at the General Meeting,
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Disapproval: 2,148,802 shares, accounting for 14.97% of the total number
of votes attending and voting at the General Meeting.

No opinion: 23,983 shares, accounting for 0.17% of the total number of
votes attending and voting at the General Meeting,

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises 2020, the Company Charter, and the

Regulations on organizing the General Meeting, this content is unanimously

approved by the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders with a rate of

84.86% of the total number of Approval votes of all shareholders attending the

meeting and voting.

Report of the Board of Supervisors at the 2025 Annual General Meefing of

Shareholders.

Approval: 14,316,192 shares, accounting for 99.75% of the total number
of votes attending and voting at the General Meeting,

Disapproval: 36,100 shares, accounting for 0.25% of the total number of
votes attending and voting at the General Meeting,

No opinion: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of votes
attending and voting at the General Meeting.

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises 2020, the Company Charter, and the

Regulations on organizing the General Meeting, this content 1s unanimously

approved by the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders with a rate of

99.75% of the total number of Approval votes of all shareholders attending the

meeting and voting.

Report on the selection of an anditing unit to review the semi-annual financial

statements and audit the 2025 financial statements.

Approval: 14,352,292 shares, accounting for 100% of the total number of
votes attending and voting at the General Meeting,

Disapproval: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of votes
attending and voting at the General Meeting.

No opinion: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of votes
attending and voting at the General Meeting.

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises 2020, the Company Charter, and the

Regulations on organizing the General Meeting, this content is unanimously

approved by the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders with a rate of 100%
of the total number of Approval votes of all shareholders attending the meeting and

voling.
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IX. APPROVAL OF RESOLUTIONS AND MINUTES OF THE GENERAL

MEETING

Ms. Bui Thi Loan - Secretary of the General Meeting presents the Minutes and
Resolution of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders,

The Minutes of the meeting and Resolution of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders are voted on by raising Voting Cards.

The voting results are as follows:
Minutes of the Company's 2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders

Approval: 14,352,292 shares, accounting for 100% of the total number
of votes attending and voting at the General Meeting.

Disapproval: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of votes
attending and voting at the General Meeting.

No opinion: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of votes
attending and voting at the General Meeting.

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises 2020, the Company Charter, and the
Regulations on organizing the General Meeting, this content is unanimously
approved by the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders by raising Voting
Cards with a rate of 100% of the total number of Approval votes of all shareholders
attending the meeting and voting.

Resolution of the Company's 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

Approval: 14.352.292 shares, accounting for 100% of the total number
of votes attending and voting at the General Meeting.

Disapproval: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of votes
attending and voting at the General Meeting.

No opinion; (0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of votes
attending and voting at the General Meeting

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises 2020, the Company Charter, and the
Regulations on organizing the General Meeting, this content is unanimously
approved by the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders by raising Voting
Cards with a rate of 100% of the total number of Approval votes of all shareholders
attending the meeting and voting,

These minutes are fully and truthfully recorded by the Secretary of the meeting,
read before the General Meeting and approved by the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders before the end of the meeting.

The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Dong Nai Building Material
and Fuel Joint Stock Company ends at 11:15 on the same day.
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The Minutes are made with the signatures of the Chairman and Secretary as

follows:

FOR SECRETARIAT
HEAD OF BOARD

,-u--lﬁni_f-*l .{'-H]'“I f{-f’i‘p*v'
*

Recipients:

- General Meeting of Shareholders;

- Members of the Board of Divectors and Board of
Supervisors;

- Board of Management;

- Save: Archives, Office of the Board of Directors.

FOR GENERAL MEETING OF

NGUYEN THANH HOA
CHAIRMAN OF BOARD OF
DIRECTORS




DONG NAI BUILDING MATERIAL

AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No.: 246/BC-HDQT2025/DBFC

AND OPERATION DIRECTION IN 2025

s

SOCIALIST REPUBLIC

ARANBRATION

Independence - Freedom - Happimess——

REPORT
ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS' OPERATION IN 2024

Bien Hoa, April 25, 2023

To: General Meeting of Shareholders of Dong Nai Building Material and Fuel Joint

Stock Company

Pursuant to the Charter of organization and operation; Internal governance regulations

of Dong Nai Building Material and Fuel Joint Stock Company ("Company”); Resolution No.
270/2024/NQ-DHPCP dated April 16, 2024 of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders. On behalf of the Board of Directars (“BOD™) of the Company, 1 would like to

report 1o the General Meeting of Shareholders (“GMS™) on the management and

performance of the Board of Directors of the Company in 2024; Operation direction in 2025,

specifically as follows:

Business resulis in 2024:

PART ONE
EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE OF TASKS IN 2024

Results of implementing the resolution of the 2024 Shareholders' Meeting

According to the audited financial statements, the Company's business results in 2024

are as follows:
| (Fmpl tation/Plin)
: . ; mplementation n
No. | Items Unit Plan | Implementation A
Revenue from a a
| | Bleelzoods Blion; | gaug 3420 78.63%
and provision of dong
services
Total output of i |
2 | all types of Miton 184.9 192.5 104%
liters |
petroleum -
3 | Fuel gas Tons 600 1.581 G8.81%
4 | Lubricant Liters’kg | 180,000 118,392 65.77%

P
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Accounting
profit before Billion o 5 -
5 coporate dong 256 20.28 79.1%
| Ingcome fax |
6 |Profitafiertax | CLMOR | g5 16.14 78.71%
dong

In 2024, the world oil market will be more stable in both price and supply compared to
2023. The domestic petroleum market has recorded positive signs in ensuring supply despite
facing many challenges from extreme natural disasters and increasing demand for
production, business and consumption.

Faced with the above issues, the Board of Directors has directed the Executive Board o
negotiate with suppliers on prices; expand the business market, espm:ia!ly the industrial and
tetail sales segment at affiliated gas stations; focus on and invest in sales skills and customer
care, participate in bidding for fuel supply for key projects, as a foundation for stability and
sustainable development in the context of many economic changes; ensure 1o achieve the
planned output approved by the 2024 Shareholders' Meeting.

2. Distribution of funds and dividend payment in 2024:
2.1. Distribution of funds from after-tax profits in 2024;
Pursuant to the Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the

profit after tax in 2024 is distributed as follows:

- Profit after tax in 2024 ' : VND 16,142,879.012

= = Ty : 2 7
Executive Board Bonus Fund (5% of 2024 profit VND 807 148951

afier tax)
- Remaining profit undistributed in 2024 : VND 15,335,830,061
- Previous year's profit carried over : VND 5.448.434,174

- Remaining undistributed profits as of December
31, 2024

VND 20,784.264.235

2.2, Dividend payment in 2024:

I implementing the Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders,
the Company will not pay dividends to shareholders 1o focus on prioritizing cash flow as a
resource for the Company's development.

3.  Transfer of the Company's Share trading registration on the Upcom to listing

Shares at the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange — HOSE:

[ 4]
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The 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders approved the plan to transfer the
trading floor from Upcom to listing on the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange (HOSE)
Pursuant to Resolution No. 239/2023/NQ-DHDCD dated April 21, 2023, the Company's
Board of Directors has proactively implemented a number of necessary procedures as
preseribed to transfer the registration of stock trading from Upcom to stock listing at HOSE.
However, in order to ensure that all listing conditions are met successfully and 1o choose the
appropriate time, the Board of Directors of the Company will implement the transfer of the
Company's stock trading registration on the Upcom to listing shares on HOSE at the
appropriate time and will report and seek shareholders’ opinions before implementation.

4. Results of the license application for the Company to act as a key trader in the
import and export of petroleum: ¥

Currently, the Ministry of Industry and Trade is finalizing the draft of a new Décree on
petroleum trading, replacing Decree No. 83/2014/ND-CP dated September 3, 2014 of the
Government on petroleum trading and Decrees amending and supplementing Decree No.
83/2014/ND-CP. The Board of Directors and the Executive Board shall continue to closely
monitor and promptly complete the necessary documents and conditions so that after the new
Decree is issued, they will apply to the Ministry of Industry and Trade for a license to act as
a key trader in petroleum import and export.

. Board of Directors’ Operation in 2024

1. The personnel structure of the company's Board of Directors (as of December 31,
2024) includes:

Date of starting/ending as a
member of the Board of

Directors
No, Full name Paosition =
Date of Sipkeut
P dismissal/end
"Ppa of term
Chairman of Board of . —
I | Ms. Nguyen Thanh Hoa Diiecto April 16,2024
2 | Mr. Vu Hoang Huynh Member Apnl 16, 2024
3 | Mr. Nguyven Van Chi - Member April 16, 2024
4 | Mr. Le Minh Khue Independent member | April 16, 2024
T Nguyen Hoang Linh ' Member April 21, 2023
& | Mr. Pham Van Nam Member April 16, 2024

- R S




1,

Meetings and Resolutions of Board of Directors:

In 2024, the Board of Directors held 06 meetings, including in-person meetings and

meetings in the form of collecting written opinions. Meetings are held in accordance with the

order and procedures prescribed in the Emterprise Law, the Company Charter and internal

regulations..., approving policies and assigning tasks to the Executive Board to resolve

specific issues on the basis of approved policies, promptly resolving the Executive Board's

requests arising in business activities.

Resolutions/Decisions of the Board of Directors in 2024 (Including Resolutions passed

by organizing meetings and obtaining written opinions of members of the Board of

Directors):
: Resolution :
No. Number/ Date Content API:'::: nl
Decision
Approval of the time and venue for the
2024 Annual General Meeting of
! IS?_I%GS,??E 3 Mf;;m‘ Shareholders and the time to close the | 100%
| < list of shareholders attending the
meeting.
Approval of the General Meeting
4 | 2022024/NQ - | March 25, | agenda, the contemt of  documents 100%
= HPQTCH 2024 submitted to the 2024 Annual General !
Meeting of Shareholders.
3 203/2024MN0Q - | March 25, | Approval of the Company's Information 100%
| HBQTCB 2024 Disclosure Regulations. !
I
|  Approval of the appointment of
— personnel  to represent  capital
+ 21}]4{%%‘1;?5 anrgir'l 425' I manngement and participate in the Board |  100%
= of Directors of Long Thanh Trading
Joint Stock Company.
3 - - | Approval of contracts and transactions
5 mﬁ“{ﬁﬁ? Maxeh 2 | with related parties (Everest Securities| 100%
Si Joint Stock Company).
6 272/2024/NQ - | April 16, | Election of the Chairman of the Board of 1 009%
HBQTCE 2024 Directors of the Company.
= : _ Decision on terminating the operation of |
7 S5 12024NQ Ma},lli Dau Giay Gas Station - a branch of the
HBOQTCD 2024 Comspany, L00%

- s




Resolution of the Board of Directors
g | S042024NQ- | July22, |approving the policy of borowing | oo
HBEOTCE 2024 capital from BIDV Bank, South Dong
MNai Branch.
Resolution of the Board of Directors
9 694/ 2024/NQ- | November |approving the loan from the Military 800
HBOQTCD 08, 2024 | Commercial Joint Stock Bank, Dong Nai =
branch.
Resolution of the Board of Directors
10 695/2024/NQ- | November |approving the loan from the Joint Stock 80%
HBQTCH 08, 2024 | Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade of
Vietnam, Dong Nai branch.
Resolution of the Board of Directors
T H96/2024/NQ- | November | approving the loan from Vietnam Bank 209
HBOTCD 08, 2024 | for Agriculture and Rural Development, ’
Tam Phuoe Dong Nai branch.

3. Remuncration of the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors of the

Company in 2024:

The total remuneration paid to the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors in 2024
is VIND 1,218.000,000. In which:

- Chairman of Board of Directors: WND 45,000,000/month

- Members of the Board of Directors: - VND 10,000,000/person/month.
- Head of Board of Supervisors: VND 7,500,000/month

- Member of the Board of Supervisors: VND 4,500,000/person/month.

4. Activities of independent BOD members:

Independent members of the Board of Directors have actively participated in the
activities of the Company in general and the Board of Directors in particular, providing
objective assessments and opinions with the common goal of perfecting corporate
governance; at the same time, completing the tasks of the Board of Directors assigned by the
General Meeting of Shareholders.

5. Monitoring results for the CEO and other managers:

The Board of Directors has effectively supervised the management and operation of the
Executive Board; regularly discussed and exchanged with the Executive Board on the
strategic situation, business performance results, implementation of the Resolution of the
General Meeting of Sharcholders and the Resolution of the Board of Directors, on issues

related 1o business activities and development orientation of the Company; at the same time,




the Board of Directors accepted the recommendations and proposals of the Executive Board
and made timely decisions, in accordance with the general market situation.

The supervision of the Board of Directors and general risk management and
compliance with the Company’s regulations in 2024 is implemented systematically and
strictly. Ensure the Company's operations are stable, safe and in compliance with legal
regulations.

The Board of Directors' supervision results show that the Board of Directors and other
officers in the Company have seriously implemented the Resolutions of the General Meeting
of Shareholders and the Resolutions of the Board of Directors, effectively organized and
implemented business and management activities in accordance with the approved policies

ang plans. -

111, Business performance of investment companies and associates in 2024:

Long Thanh | Tay Nguyven | Rang Dong
it Uit Joint Stock Durian Joint Food
eme ' Trading Stock Company
Company Company Limited
Amount of contributed capital |  Billion 09 [0 i
owned by the Company. | dong e )
Ownership/chaner capital rate Vo [ 33.36 10.35 +
F:r:vcnu::_lljnrn sale nflgmds Billion | 167.26 79.58 L85
and provision of services dong
Profit before tax Biitiom:: | 6.43 1.01 (0.14)
dong
Profit after tax Billion 5.15 101 (0.14) |
dong -
f)lxr:dfnd distribution/charter a% Expected 50% 9 N
capital '
PART TWO:
PLAN AND DIRECTION OF OPERATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
IN 2025

1. General situation assessment:

2025 is the year the whole country sets a target of accelerating, striving for a GDP
growth rate of aver 8%, creating a premise for economic development in the following years.
This is both an opportunity and a challenge for the economy in general and emterprises in

f




particular. Based on the results of the implementation of tasks in 2024 and forecast of the
situation in 2023, the Board of Directors assesses and comments as follows:

a.  Advantages:

- Vietnam's macroeconomic situation continues to be stable; production, business,
investment, import and export are expected to have many positive changes; gasoline demand
in 2025 is expected to increase by 5-7% compared to 2024; industry, transportation and
agriculture will continue to be the main gasoline consuming sectors.

- Many solutions and policies issued in recemt years will continue to be effective and
have a positive impact on the economy. The increasingly complete legal framework will
create an important premise for enterprises o develop safely, siably and sustainably.

b. Difficulties: .

- Challenges from US wrade policy and political and ¢conomic mstability in major EU
economies will continue to impact the overall economic situation.

- World erude oil prices will fluctuate due to the impact of unfavorable demand growth,
the exploitation and production situation of OPEC. OPEC ...

- Competition from renewable energies, especially electric vehicles and solar power.
2. Operational orientation and basic planning and task targets:
2.1. Basic tasks, orientation;

a.  Complete the documents and necessary conditions to apply for a license to become a
key trader in importing and exporting pelrhieum after the new Decree on petroleum trading
is issued.

b.  Exercise the rights and responsibilities of the Board of Directors as stipulated in the
Charter, Regulations and Rules of the Company: ensure the good implementation of the
ohjectives of the General Meeting of Shareholders and ensure the rights of sharcholders.

¢.  Prioritize resources on the Company's main business areas to complete the 2025
business plan targets assigned by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

d. Continue to improve financial management capacity; ensure the Company’s entire
finances are safe and effective.

e. Continue to resolve issues related to the prepayment for goods to Viet Oil Joint Stock
Company with the amount of VND 37,991,800,000,

f.  Strengthen forecasting of” fluctuations related to the petroleum situation, proactively
and flexibly adjust the Company's busingss strategy 10 ensure it is suitable for the petroleum
market situation in general and the Company's business situation in particular. Find new
customers, take care of old customers; improve service quality 10 meet the increasing

demands of customers.




g.  Strengthen supervision and coordination with the Board of Directors and departments
to operate the Company's operations effectively. Direct the promotion and innovation of
training, recruitment, planning and reasonable appointment, Care about income and benefits
for employees.

h. Develop orienmations and policies to implement the targets of the Resolution of the
2025 Shareholders' Meeting.

2.2, Expected business plan items for 20235

No, Ttems Unit Plan in 2025
| Revenue from sale of goods and provision of Biltion dong 3.605
services

"2 | Total petroleum output sold Million liters } 197.62
3 | Fuel gas Tons 1.600
4 | Lubrnicant liters 180,000 |
3 | Profit before CIT Billion dong 20.6
6 | Profits after corporate income tax Billion dong | 16.5
7 | Dividend distribution Yo I]d

During the implementation process, depending on the actual business situation, the
Board of Directors will direct the Board of Directors to calculate and adjust the plans,
ensuring that the sét production and business plan targets are achieved.

PART THREE
CONCLUSIONS

Above is the summary report of the Board of Directors' operation in 2024 and the
direction of activities in 2025. The Board of Directors of the Company would like to
sincerely thank the trust of shareholders who have stood side by side with the Company in
the past year; at the same time, highly appreciate the dedication und efforts of the Board of
Directors and emplovees, the spirit of solidarity and unanimity of the Company's staff who
have persevered in overcoming difficulties, working together 1o build the Company with
growth and stability.

We believe that, with what we have been and continue to strive for, along with your
commitment, trust and support, Our company will continue to produce and do business more
cffectively in the coming vears.

We wish all shareholders good health, happiness and success in life!

Sincerely thanks./.




Recipients: FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- General .‘lfv.rnm: -rg'f'S-".lr.r.f*c.ﬁ-:fclffr.':. CHAIRMAN

= Menvbers af Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors;

- Board nf Management; (signed and sealed)
- Save: Soard of Directors, Admintsirarion - Greanization

Department

Nguven Thanh Hoa




DONG NAI BUILDING SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT
STOCK COMPANY

N0.247/BC-BPH/2025/DBFC

Independence — Freedom — Happiness
Bien Hoa, April 23, 2023

REPORT

Re: Business resulis in 2024
and business direction in 2025

Jo: General Meeting of Sharcholders of Dong Nai Building Material and Fuel

Joint Stock Company

On behalf of Executive Board of Dong Nai Building Material and Fuel Joim Stock
Company (“the Company™), | would like to report to the General Meeting on the business
results of 2024 and the business plan of the Company's Executive Board for 2025 as

follows:

PART 1:
BUSINESS PERFORMANCE RESULTS IN 2024

I.  General situation:

In 2024, the world and Viemamese petroleum markets are more stable in both price
and supply compared to 2023; however. it still faces many difficulties due to the impact of
political instability, pressure on the US dollar to increase in value, and slow recovery of
global economic growth, trade, and investment. In Vietnam, the petroleum market recorded
positive signs in ensuring supply despite facing manv challenges.

Il. Business results in 2024
1. For annual business results in 2024

I.1. Performance results of the 2024 plan for the whole Company:

: . Plan in | Implementation | Implementation/plan
No.| [Conmterta U 2024 in 2024 rate for 2024
L | Output I
Total output s
‘ 1 | ofall types of '"':,‘”":’“ 184.9 192.5 104%
iers
petroleum
| 2 | Fuel gas Tons 1,600 1,581 98.81%




3 | Lubricant Liters'kg 180,000 118,392 63.77%
Il. | Finance
Revenue from
1 sales of g:::u::ds Billion 4.349 3420 78 63%
and provision dong
of services
3 | coitofsates | Pidion 4.261 3.344 78.47%
dong ,
Net revenue
from sales of Billion
3 | goods and 88 76.2 86.22%
. dong -
rendering of
Services
, | Profit before Billion x i 1%
4 CIT dong 25.6 20.28 79, 1%
5 | CIT i 5.1 4.14 80,64%
dong
Profits after -
6 |corporate Hilton 205 16.14 78.71%
; dong
ncome tax

1.2. Output results in 2024:

The total output of the Company in 2024 is 194.1 million liters including gasoline,
oil, gas. and lubricants of all kinds, It achieves 104% of plan. Qutput details are as follows:
- Total gasoline and oil output sold reached 192.5 million liters, reaching 104% of the
plan, reaching 101% compared to the same petiod in 2023,

- Total Gas output sold reached 1,581 tons, reaching 98.81% of the plan, reaching
178.53% compared to the same period in 2023.

- Total Lubricant output sold reached 118,392 liters, reaching 63.77% of the plan,
reaching 115.41% compared to the same period in 2023.

1.3, Business support:

- Organize business and sales activities to meet market demands. especially during
holidays and Tet holidays.

- Timely adjust business policies to ensure they are consistent with the general market
orientation and situation; increase the initiative and flexibility of affiliated gas stations, and

increase sales output.




- Implement and complete the work of issuing invoices for each sale and train staff at
affiliated gas stations to meet the requirements according to regulations,

- Ensure fire safety, security and order at affiliated gas stations.

- Develop a plan to protect information technology systems and network security.

2.  Labor organization and remuneration:

- Total number of employees as of December 31, 2024 is: 121 people, decreased by 12
people compared to the same period in 2023.

- The Company’s Executive Board has the following personnel changes: Appoint Ms.
Tran Thi Ai Lien to Deputy Director of the Company from January 1, 2024 according to
Resolution of the Board of Directors 847/2023/QD-HDQTCD dated December 27, 2023,
- Despite of difficulties in the business situation, the Company has implemented
policies and regulations for employees in accordance with regulations, ensuring stable
income for employees.

- Implement personnel transfers under the capacity of each employee, streamlining the
Company’s human resources.

3. Planning and basic construction:

No. Investment categories in 2024 Investment value (VND)
I Repair and maintenance cosis. 44,933,200 .
2 Repair, renovation, and office equipment costs 271,782,968
3 Cost of installing station equipment | R78.196,401
| Total investment value 1,194,912,569

- In 2024, the Company invested in, renovated and repaired a number of its retail
stations; ensuring that the stations have a clean and tidy appearance; operate safely,
effectively and compete with other gas stations in the same area.

- Complete installation of technology system to issue invoices for each sale at affiliated
gas stations.

- For legal procedures regarding land at Suoi Nho gas stations, An Binh gas stations
and land at the glass warehouse on Vo Thi Sau Street: The Executive Board is working

with state agencies to expedite the settlement of legal documents at the above lands,




- For An Phuoc gas station project: The Executive Board has registered the land use

plan, is carrying out procedures to change land use purpose and other legal procedures to

he able to invest in building the station in the near future.

= During the year. hand over the land at Dau Giay gas stations to the stale agency 1o

implement the traffic project.

PART II

DIRECTION OF BUSINESS ACTIVITIES IN 2025

.  Situation assessment:

- According to the United Nations, although the global growth forecast for 2025 has

been raised. the economic outlook will be cautiously optimistic as persistent high interest

rates, bad debt and escalating and widespread geopolitical risks will continue to be barriers

10 economic growth.

- It is expected that by 2025, the domestic petroleum market will see growth in

consumption demand. However, enterprises need to be flexible in adjusting their business

operations to adapt to changes in energy policy and fluctuations in international markets.

Il. Business direction:

1. Business plan targets:

In 2025, the Company builds a plan with a number of specific targets as follows:

| No. Basic items Unit Year 2025
I. | Output
1 | Total petroleum output sold Million liters _ 197.62
2 | Fuel gas Tons 1.600
3 | Lubricant Liters 180,000
Il. | Finance
0 ;tei:?:;]: from sales of goods and provision of Billion dong 3.605
2 | Cost of sales Billion dong 3,527
3 Uh:;ﬁr::j:z:c from sales of goods and rendering Biltion dong 18
4 | Profit before CIT . Billion dong 20.6




> |CIT Billion dong 4.1

6 | Profits afier corporate income tax Billion dong 16.5 |

2. Business:

- Prepare documents to carry out procedures to renew the ficense for petroleum
distribution (expiring in January 2026).

- Complete the documents and necessary conditions to apply for a license to become a
petroleum import-export trader after the new Decree on petroleum trading is issued.

= Continue to resolve issues related to prepayment for goods to Viet Oil Joint Stock
Company with the amount of VND 37,991.800.000.

- Implement sustainable development strategy, through specific g(;als as follows:

+  Focus on developing key products: Gasoline, oil, gas, lubricant:

+  For the retail business sector: Expand the system of affiliated stations by purchasing
more or subleasing in different locations;

+  For wholesale business sector: Promote market development, minimize debt risks by
selling goods with prepayment before receiving goods or signing payment guaraniees;

+  Ensure quantity, quality of goods and human resources;

+  Strengthen marketing activities, maintain traditional customers and seek new
customers;

+  Develop quality sales services to maintain brand in the petroleum market;

+  Closely monitor and promptly grasp the situation of fluctuations in gasoline prices to
manage reasonable inventory of goods. opportunities to increase profits;

+  Actively seck out key traders with competitive prices and ensure product quality
according to the law on each sector.

- Business activities of the Company and its units must be carried out in accordance
with the regulations of the State and the Company.

- Continug to promote existing advantages and focus on the goal of expanding
operations in the Southwest and Southeast regions, increasing customers and output,
professionalizing product supply and customer care processes, enhancing the reputation
and position of the enteérprise in the sector.

- Focus on stabilizing operations and development at affiliated stations, strengthening
direction, inspection and supervision of units performing tasks. Determined to complete
and exceed the 2025 plan targets.

3. Labor organization and remuneration




- Strengthen training to improve the quality of management staff and train resource
staff,
- Timely update and complete salary policy, improve performance evaluation for
individuals and groups in conjunction with annual work targets.
- Review and draft complete document systems 10 manage and operate the Company
systematically and according 1o standards.
- Review and complete the personnel system, organizational chart, job title chart of
departments, work assignment targets, task assignment, job deseription of each position;
specific functions and tasks of departments in a streamlined and effective direction.
4. Basic construction, investment work =

The company plans to carry out basic construction investment work in 2025 as
follows:
- Investment in infrastructure: basic construction: Continue to inspect and survey the
current status, develop plans for design, construction and repair of affiliated retail gasoline
stations, ensuring aesthetic suitability to identifv the brand and attract customers;
- Continue working with authorities to resolve legal issues regarding land at Suoi Nho
gas station, An Binh gas station and land at the glass warchouse on Vo Thi Sau street,
- Invest in the construction of new An Phuoc gas station after completing legal
procedures on land:
- Install tanks for new customers, equip signs for new agents;
- Provide equipment, replace, maintain and service station systems,
5. Other issues
- Plan to find reputable and quality suppliers of goods and services to ensure stable
input sources for the business process, helping the Company to be more proactive in
production and business activities.
- Enhance management quality through investment in tools, equipment, and software
10 support operations and management; invest in and develop business management
software systems.
- Supervise fire prevention and fighting, security and order inspections to create a safe
and civilized business environment.
- Use working capital effectively to reduce financial costs and increase profits,

From the results achieved in 2024, the characteristics of the petroleum supply market
and internal enterprises, the advantages and disadvantages in the operation process were

pointed out to gain experience and promote existing capacity, With the challenges and




opportunities in 2025 and the available premises, with determination and efforts in the
process of operating the Company, the Board of Directors will direct employees to
successfully complete the tasks and plans set out in 2025,

Sincerely thanks.

Recipients: DIRECTOR
= {remmeral Megrimg of Sarefplders, !
= Members qf Board af Directors, Board of Supervisors; l"-'i'l'g ned and sealed)

- Exeeniive Hoord!

- Soved gt Boged of Directors, Adwimisiraion - Orgamizaiion
Departnneni

Nguven Hoang Linh




DONG NAI BUILDING SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
MATERIAL AND FUEL Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Bien Hoa, April 23, 2025
No. 248/TTv/2025/DBFC

REPORT
Re: Approval of the 2024 audited financial statement

To: General Meeting of Shareholders of Dong Nai Building Material and Fuel
Joint Stock Company

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 39/2020/ QH14 dated June 17, 2020 of the
National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Viemam; 2

Pursuant to the Charter of organization and operation af Dong Nai Building
Material and Fuel Joint Stock Company,

Pursuant to the Internal Regulations on Corporate Governance of Dong Nai
Building Material and Fuel Joint Stock Company;

Pursuani ro the Financial Starements of Dong Nai Building Marerial and Fuel Joint
Stack Company for the fiscal vear from January 1. 2024 to December 31, 2024, audited

by AFC Vietnam Auditing Company Limited.

Pursuant 1o the Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on
sclecting a unit to review the Semi-annual Financial Statements and audit the 2024
Financial Statements, the Company has selected AFC Viemam Auditing Company
Limited as the unit to review the Semi-annual Financial Statements and audit the 2024

Financial Statements.

The Board of Directors of the Company respectfully submits to the General
Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and approval of the 2024 Audited Financial
Statements according to the attached documents./,

Recipients: FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- Grenerad Meetinge of Sharehalders: CHAIRMAN

- Members of Board of Directars, Board of Supervisors,

= Board of Management;

- Saved at Board of Directars, Administration - Organization (signed and sealed)
Depeiriment,

Nguven Thanh Hoa
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DONG NAI BUILDING SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT Independence - Freedom - Happiness
STOCK COMPANY

No. 249/TTr/2025/DBFC

Bien Hoa, April 23, 2023

REPORT

Re: Sertlement of remuneration for the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors in
2024 and the plan for payment of remuneration for the Board of Directors and the Board of
Supervisors in 2025

To: General Mecting of Shareholders of
Dong Nai Building Material and Fuel Joint Stock Company

Pursuant to the functions, tasks, rights and obiigations of the Board of Directors (BOD)
and the Board aof Supervisors (BOS) stipulated in the Charier of organization and operation of
Dong Nai Building Material and Fuel Joim Stock Company;

Pursuant fo Resolution No. 270/2024NO-BHDCD dated April 16, 2024 of the 2024
Amnual General Meeting of Shareholders;

Based on the 2024 business results, 2025 business plan and the Company's actual
operations, the Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders
the following contents:

A.  Final settlement of remuneration for members of the Board of Directors and
Board of Supervisors in 2024:

Pursuant to Resolution No. 270/2024/NQ-DHBCD dated April 16, 2024 At the 2024
Amual General Meeting of Shareholders, the remuneration of the Board of Directors and the
Board of Supervisors is as follows:

I.. Number of members of the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors:
- Members of the Board of Directors: 05 members.

- Members of Board of Supervisors: 03 members.

2. Estimated expenditure in 2024: WVND |,218,000,000;

3. Actual remuneration paid in 2024: VND 1,218,000,000, In which:

- Chairman of Board of Directors: VND 43,000,000/month

- Members of the Board of Directors: VIND 10,000,000/person/month,

- Head of Board of Supervisors: VND 7,500,000/month

= Members of Board of Supervisors: VND 4,500,000/person/month.

B. Remuneration plan for members of the Board of Directors and Board of
Supervisors in 2025:

L. Number of members of the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors:

. Members of the Board of Directors: 03 members,

Members of Board of Supervisors: 03 members.

Estimated expenditure in 2025: VND 1.218,000,000; the specific expenditure
level for each Member is agreed upon by the Members.

| g%}




Respectfully submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and
approval ./

Recipients: FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- General Meeting af Shareholders; CHAIRMAN

- Members of Board nf Directors, Board af
Supervisors;

- Board of Management,

- Seved af Board of Direciors, Administration -
Organization Department,

{signed and sealed)

Nguven Thanh Hoa




DONG NAI BUILDING SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT Independence - Freedom - Happiness
STOCK COMPANY

No. 250/TTr2025/DBFC Bien Hoa, April 23, 2025

REPORT
Re: Prafit distribution and dividend payment plan in 2024,
profir distribution and dividend payment plan in 2025

T'o: General Meeting of Sharcholders of Dong Nai Building Material and Fuel
Joint Stock Company

-

Pursuant fo the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH 14 issued on June 17, 2020;

Pursuant to the Charter of organization and aperation of Dong Nai Building Material
and Fuel Joint Stock Company:

Pursuant to the Internal Regulations on Corporate Governance of Dong Nai Building
Marerial and Fuel Jaint Stock Compeany;

Pursuant to Resolution No. 27002024/ NO-DHDCE dared April 16, 2024 of the 2024
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders:

Pursuant 1o the Financial Statements of Dong Nai Building Material and Fuel Joint
Steck Company for the fiscal vear from January I, 2024 to December 31, 2024, audited by
AFC Vietnam Auditing Company Limited,

Based on the business performance results, the Board of Directors of Dong Nai
Building Material and Fuel Joint Stock Company respectfully submits to the General
Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and approval of the profit distribution and
dividend payment plan in 2024 and the profit distribution and dividend payment plan in 2025
as follows:

A.  Distribution of profit in 2024

PROFIT DISTRIBUTION AND DIVIDEND PAYMENT IN 2024

Unit: FND
No. ltems _ - Amount
| Undistributed profit after tax as of December 31, 21.591.413.186
2024
! | Profit after tax in 2024 16,142,979,012
Undistributed profit after tax from previous vears
-] J y
Ul pressu g 5,448.434.174
Il | Appropriation of funds in 2024 807,148,951

2024 Executive Board Bonus Fund (5% of 2024 |
after-tax profit)

Remaining profit after appropriation of funds in
2024:

807,148,951

1 20,784.264.235 |-
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v Divi:ten:_ls i
Total remaining undistributed profit is used to

V| supplement investment capital (carried over to 20,784.264.235
| mext }_‘ﬂl‘] [

B.  Profit distribution and dividend payment plan in 2025

PROFIT DISTRIBUTION AND DIVIDEND PAYMENT PLAN IN 2025

Linit: FND
No. ltems Amount
I | Undistributed afier-tax profits 16.498,000,000
Dreduction from 2025 Executive Board Bonus Fund (5% of
11 2025 after-tax profit) BEAL00, 500
I | Dividend distribution 0

For the remaining undistributed profits, continue to prioritize cash flow used as a

resource for the Company’s development.

The Board of Directors respectfully submits 1o the General Meeting of Sharcholders for
consideration and approval./.

- Creperal Meeting of Sharcholders, CHAIRMAN
= Mesbery of Board af Directars, Board of Supervisors;
= Boged af Monegement; fsfgm:d and sealed)

- Saved af Bowrd of Directors, Administration - Orgerization
Bepartient,

Nguven Thanh Hoa




DONG NAI BUILDING MATERIAL SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No. 251/ BKS Bien Hoa, April 25, 2023

REPORT OF BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
At the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

To: The General Meeting of Shareholders of
Dong Nai Building Material and Fuel Joint Stock Company

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 392020V QHI4 dated June 17, 2020 of the
Natignal Assembly af the Socialist Republic of Vietnam,

Pursuant to the functions, tasks and powers of the Board of Supervisors as stipulated
in the charter of organization and aperation of Dong Nai Building Material and Fuel Joint
Stock Company (hereinafter referred io as the Company);

Pursuant to the Company's 2024 Financial Statements audited by AFC Vigtnam
Auwditing Co., Lid, on March 10, 2023

The Company's Board of Supervisors reporis to the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders the results of inspection. supervision and the operation situation of the Board
of Supervisors in 2024 as follows:

. Activities of the Board of Supervisors:

In 2024, the Board of Supervisors has performed the supervision of the Company's
operations in accordance with the functions and tasks prescribed in the Company's Charter
of Organization and Operation and the Enterprise Law.

. Control compliance with laws, Charter, rules and regulations of the Company.

2. Control the implementation and results of the Resolution of the 2024 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders for the Board of Directors and the Board of Management.

3. Provide opinions and recommendations to the Board of Directors and the Company’s
Board of Management on issues related to the Company’s operations during the year.

4. Audit the Company's 2024 financial statements to assess the truthfulness and
reasonableness of financial data, in accordance with current Vietnamese accounting
standards. regimes and financial policies.

5.  The Board of Supervisors performs other tasks according to its functions and duties.
II. Results of supervision in 2024

1. Appraisal of the 2024 financial statements

- The Company has prepared and published the 2024 Financial Statements fully

reflecting the Company’s production, business and financial situation, presented according




to the reporting forms preseribed in Circular No, 200/2014TT-BTC dated December 22,
2014.
- The Company's 2024 financial statements are audited by AFC Vietnam Auditing
Company Limited and the Audit Report is issued on March 10, 2025,

Opinion of AFC Vietnam Auditing Company Limited: “The financial statements give
a true and fair view on the key aspects of the financial situation of Dong Nai Building
Material and Fuel Joint Stock Company on December 31, 2024, as well as the results of
operations, cash flow situation for the fiscal year ending on the same date in accordance
with Viemamese accounting standards, Vietnamese corporate accounting regime and the
legal pravisions relevant to the preparation and presentation of financial statements. Except
for the effects of the matters described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion™ paragraph: The
prepayment to Viet Oil Joint Stock Company as of December 31, 2024 in the amount of
VND 37.991,800,000 is currently being committed by Ms. Mai Thi Ngoe Trinh to pay the
debt by transferring land use rights and assets attached to the land according to the
Commitment dated November 3, 2022, As of the date of this financial statement. the
Company has not yet completed the procedures for the transfer of land use rights and
attached assets mentioned above, therefore the advance payment to the seller of Viet Oil
Jot Stock Company has not yet been offset.”

* Comments and evaluation of some items on the Financial Statements:
Main items - Unit: VND

ENDING BEGINNING
BALANCE BALANCE

NAME OF ITEMS

ASSETS
A - CURRENT ASSETS —
1. Cash and cash equivalents
[l. Short-term financial investments
 [11. Short-term receivables

| 628,705,383,141 |  624.829,174,063
| 42620435447 | 19,964.578.596

238.300.000,000 | 294,170,000,000
152,105,465,172 |  142,421,273,546 |

1V. Inventory 175,108,909,953 | 162,994,348,463
V. Other short-term assets 570,572.569 | 5,278,973 458
B, NON-CURRENT ASSETS 88.000,635,752 | 82.783.158,727
[. Non-current receivables 4,137,186,000 2,123,338,000
[I. Fixed assets - 20,290,446,360 19.319,464.870
IV. Unfinished long-term assets 2262500000 0
V. Long-term financial investment | 61,186,803.984 |  59,476,632,030
V1 Other non-current assets L 2,159,940.408 1,863,723,827
TOTAL ASSETS 716.706,018,893 | 707,612,332,790
CAPITAL SOURCES
C - LIABILITIES (300 = 310 + 330) 536,633,975,707 |  543,683.268.616
I. Short-term debts 330.376,775,701 | 539.089.701.949

|11, Non current liabilities 6,257,200,006 4,593.566,667
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| D-EQUITY 180,072,043,186 | 163,929,064.174
L Owner's Equity 180,072,043,186 |  163,929,064,174 |
- Accumulated undistributed profit after tax until

the ending previous period o 01901
- Undistributed profit after tax of current period 16,142,979,012 5,447,914.074 |
TOTAL CAPITAL 716,706,018,893 707,612.332,790 |

- Current assets: 628.705 billion dong. accounting for 87.72% of total assets, mainly
cash, short-term financial investments. receivables and inventories.
- Current customer receivable balance: 99.273 billion dong accounting for 13.85% of
total assets, up 0.88% over the same period in 2023, The total provision for current doubtful
receivables as of December 31, 2024 is 10.166 billion dong.
- Non-current assets 88.0 billion dong. accounting for 12.28% of total assets.
- Liabilities: Total outstanding liabilities as of December 31, 2024: 536.634 billion
dong, accounting for 74.88% of total capital, down 1.95% over the same period in 2023,
In which debt: 512,68 billion dong, accounting for 95.54% of liabilities.
- Owner’s equity: 180,072 billion dong, accounting for 25.12% of total capital. In
which the balances of the funds are respectively:

+  Owner's equity: I 58.480 billion dong

+  Undistributed profits: 21.591 billion dong

The above financial structure shows:

The main business lines of the Et:-umpany are trading in gasoline, oil, gas... Therefore.
assets are mainly current assets, accounting for 87.72% of total assets (mainly inventories,
receivables, cash, short-term financial investments).

The main source of capital 10 finance business activities is borrowed capital.
accounting for 935.34% of liabilities. Receivables from customers increase by (.88%
compared to 2023 and accounts for 13.85% of total assets.

* Shareholder situation and structure:

- Owner's investment capital details Unit As of December 31, 2024 Rate
+ Quang Ninh Bus Station Joint VD 53.627,340,000 35.1%
Stock Company
+ Ms. Hoang Thi Thanh Hang VND 35,174,000,000 22.19%
+ Mr. Luu Cong Quang VND 14,906,570.000 9.41%
+ Vietnam National Petroleum Group VND 13,102,210,000 8.27%
= PETEC Trading and Investment Corporation VND 7.924,810,000 5.00%
+ Other shareholders VND 31,745,700.000 20.03%
Total 158.480.630,000 100%
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- Number of shareholders Shareholders 281
- Total number of cutstanding shares Shares 15,848,063

- Par value of outstanding share VND 10,000/share

2. Results of implementing the plan items and Resolution of the 2024 Shareholders'
Meeting

The results of the planned items for 2024 are as follows:

[ o Unit Plan | Implementation | Implementation/Plan |
2024 2024 rate in 2024
sold liters
Fuel gas Tons 1,600 1,581 98.81%
Total revenue Billion 4,349 1,420 78.63%
dong
Profit after tax Billion 20.5 16.14 78.71%
| dong |

= Total gasoline output sold in 2024 is; 192.5 million liters, reaching |04% of the plan.
- Revenue: 3,420 billion dong, reaching 78.63% of the plan,

- Profit after tax: 16,14 billion dong, reaching 78.71% of the plan.

Both revenue and profit decreased compared to the plan set by the 2024 Shareholders'
Meeting.

3. Supervision results for the Board of Directors:

In 2024, the Board of Directors held 06 meetings (including in-person meetings and
meetings in the form of collecting written opinions) and issued 11 Resolutions. All
meetings of the Board of Directors have specific draft content prepared, notified to
members of the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors for study before the meeting,
Issues raised in the meeting are democratically discussed to make specific Resolutions.
direct and operate the Company's activities in compliance with the law and the Company's
Charter, specifically:

- Approve policies and assign tasks to the Executive Board to resolve specific issues
based on approved policies. Direct and supervise the Board of Directors in developing and
implementing manthly production and business plans. Promptly resolve requests from the
Executive Board arising during the production and business process.

- Congcretize the Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders by Resolutions of
the Board of Directors and direct the Board of Directors to operate and comply.




- Transfer of the Company’s Share trading registration on the Upcom to listing Shares
at the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange — HOSE: Not vet implemented because the
Company has not met certain conditions when trading on the HOSE,

- The Board of Directors has completed its function of inspecting and urging the Board
of Directors in implementation.

4. Supervision results for the Board of Management:

- The Board of Directors properly implements the resolutions of the General Meeting
of Sharcholders and the resolutions of the Board of Directors, ensuring compliance with
the Company Charter and legal regulations.

- Organize and implement business activities and effective management in accordance
with approved policies and plans. '

5. Control of Company Resources:

*  Labor organization and remuneration:

- Total number of employees as of December 31. 2024 is: 121 people.

- Total salary fund implemented in 2024: 24.617 billion dong.

- The Company pays salaries and bonuses to employees according 1o the Company's
salary and bonus distribution regulations. Income ensures stable life for employees.

- The appointment, transfer and recruitment of personnel all come from production and
business needs. The Company's apparatus has been and is continuing to be improved,
enhancing the effectiveness of management and operation.

*  Status of implementation of obligations to pay the State budget

The company pays the State budget fully and promptly as prescribed. In 2024, the
Company paid to the State budget: 5.176 billion dong.

*  Investment and basic construction in 2024

In 2024, the Company invested in renovating. repairing, and installing equipment for
stores and the Company's office with total cost of: 1.19 billion dong. In general, the
procedures and order of investment in construction are fully implemented in accordance
with the provisions of law,

I Recommendations and work directions for 2025:

In 2025, the Board of Supervisors will overcome the shoricomings and limitations of
2024, and continue to exercise the rights and obligations prescribed by law and the
Company's Charter. Monitor compliance with legal regulations and business operations of
the Board of Directors and Board of Management so that the Company's business
operations continue to develop safely and effectively, The Board of Supervisors has some
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recommendations and directions for work in 2025 as follows:

l.  Recommendations:

- Request the Company's Board of Directors to complete the procedures for
transferring land use rights and assets attached to the land according to the Commitment
dated November 3, 2022 of Ms. Mai Thi Ngoc Trinh for the prepayment of Viet Oil Joint
Stock Company.

Propose that the Board of Directors and the Executive Board of the Company
continue 1o closely follow the competent authorities, complete the documents and
procedures to be licensed for the Company to be a key trader in importing and exporting
petroleum in the coming time.

- Propose that the Executive Board of the Company take measures to collect debis.
classify each customer, review fuel purchase and sale contracts, payment terms at units,
actively urge debt callection on time, promptly detect debis with signs of delay and late
payment to have timely debt collection plans.

- Improve the quality of sales services to maintain the brand in the petroleum market,
Exploit and develop new customers, actively collect debt. Always maintain prestige and
constantly improve the position of the Company

- Promote existing advantages, continue to research and expand business markets to
neighboring areas, increase customers and consumption output,

- Continue to improve financial management capacity, ensuring the company's finances
are safe and effective.

2.  Work direction:

In 2025, the Board of Supervisors will continue to fully perform its functions, duties
and powers according to the Company Charter and the Board of Supervisors' operating
regulations,

Above is the entire report of the Board of Supervisors submitted to the 2025 General
Meeting of Sharcholders. We look forward to receiving vour sincere comments and
suggestions so that the Board of Supervisors can better fulfill its duties in the next fiscal
year.

On behalf of the Board of Supervisors, we wish all shareholders good health and
happiness.

Wish the General Meeting a great success.

Sincerely thanks.




Recipients:

- General Meeting of Shareholders;

- Board of DirectorsBoard of Management;
- Save: Archives, Board of Supervisors,

FOR THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS
HEAD OF BOARD

{signed and sealed)

Vu Thi Mai Phuong




DONG NAI BUILDING MATERIAL SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness
No. 252/2025/Tr-BKS

Bien Haa, April 25, 20123

REPORT

“Re: selection of an auditing unit to review the semi-annual financial statements
and audit of the 2025 financial statements”

To: General Meeting of Shareholders of
Dong Nai Building Material and Fuel Joint Stock Company

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 3% 2020/0H14;

Pursuant 1o the Securities Law No, 342013 QHI4,

Pursuant to the Charter of organization and operation of Dong Nai Building Material
and Fuel Joint Stock Company; =

In exercising the powers and obligations prescribed in the Company’s Charter and the
provisions of law, the Board of Supervisors respectfully submits to the 2025 Annual General

Meeting of Shareholders the selection of an auditing company to review the Company's semi-
annual financial statements and audit the Company's 20235 financial statements as follows:
| The Board of Supervisors proposes to the General Meeting of Shareholders the following
criteria for selecting an auditing umit:

- Be a reputable, branded independent auditing unit, trusted by many public companies,
with a team of highly qualified and experienced auditors.

Be an entity legally operating in Vietnam and approved by the State Securities
Commission to audit public interest entities in the securities sector in 2024,

Auditing must comply with the provisions of accounting standards and the Vietnamese
Accounting System. '
- There are reasonable audit fees, suitable for the comtent, quality and progress of the
Company's audit,

2 Based on the above selection criteria, the Board of Supervisors proposes the following
04 auditing companies to review the semi-annual financial statements and audit the 20235
financial statements:

- CPA Vietnam Auditing Company Limited
- A&LC Auditing and Consulting Co., Lid

- AAC Auditing and Accounting Company Limited

- AFC Vietnam Auditing Company Limited
With the above proposals, the Board of Supervisors respectfully submits to the General

Meeting of Shareholders for approval the authorization to the Board of Supervisors 10 decide
on the selection of one of the auditing companies as proposed by the Board of Supervisors and
assign the Company's Dirgctor 1o sign an auditing service contract to review the Company's
semi-annual financial statements and audit the Company's 2025 financial statements.

Respectfully submit 10 the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and
approval.

Revipients: FOR BOARD OF SUPERVISORS HEAD
- Asabove; OF BOARD
- Board of Directors, Diractor (signed and sealed)

- Save: Archives, Board of Supervisors. Vu Thi Mai Phuong
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Téi, Nguyen Thi Mai Hién, CCCD sb: 001300010089 do Cuc canh sét quan Iy hanh chinh v& trit 1w xi hii clp naiy
25/04/2021; cam doan dich chinh xdc gidy ti' viin ban nay tir tiéng Viét sang tiéng Anh.
I, Nguyen Thi Mai Hien, 1D Card no. 001300010089 issued on 25/04/2021 by Police Department for Administrative
Management of Social Order, commuit that | exactly translated the content of this document from Vietnamese to English.
Nguiri djch
Translator

Nguyvén Tt:i{ﬁ;i,mh

Meuyen Thi Mai Hien

iN Y yTIM
Ham nay, ngdy 25 thing 04 ndm 2025 (Ngay hai muoi [&m, thang tr, ndm hai nghin khong trim hai muoi Bm)
Today, dated 25/04/2025 (on the twenty - fifth of April, 'I:wu thousand and twenty-five)
Tai Van phong Cong chimg Nguyen Hug, dja chi tai 50 163 Gidng V0, phwtmg Cét Linh, quin Dong Ba, thanh pho Ha

Wi

at Nguyen Hue Notary Office — Address at: No. 165 Giang Vo, Cat Linh Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi City.

Tai, dnyg chimg vién, trong pham vi trach nhiém cida minh theo quy dinh cia phap
oty The

L %’ ; = Public Notary, within the range of my responsibility as provided for by law.

NG NHAN/ CERTIFY THA

- Bén djch ndy do Nguyén Thj Mai Hién, CCCD so: 001300010089 do Cyc canh sét quén 1§ hanh chinh v& trit ty x4 hai
cp ngy 25/04/2021, 14 cgng tic vien phién dich cia Van phong Cong chimg Nguyén Hué, thinh phé Ha Nai, da dich
vir tiéng Viét sang ting Anh.

- This translation is made from Vietnamese to English by Mrs. Nguyen Thi Mai Hien, ID Card no. 001300010089
issued on 25/04/2021 by Police Department for Administrative Management of Social Order, is translation collaborator
of Nguyen Hue Motary Office, Hanoi City.

- Chit ky trong bin dich ding 13 chir ky ciia ba Nguyén Thj Mai Hién

- The signature on the document is the signature of Mrs. Nguyen Thi Mai Hien

= N{i dung cia ban dich chinh xde, khéng vi pham phéap lujt, khéng trdi voi dgo dire x3 h{i;

- The contents of the translation are correct, compliant with the law and not against social morality;

- Viin bén cdng chimg ndy dwge [ip thinh 02 ban chinh, moiban gbm 30 td, 30 trang, heu 01 (mdt) bén tai
Vin phang Cong chimg Nguyén Hug, thinh phd Ha Nji.

- The notarized translation is made into 02 originals included 30 sheets, 30 pages, 01 (one) of which is kept in
Nguyen Hue Notary Office, Hanoi City.

Sb cong chimg : Quyén sb: 01 /2025 TP/CC-SCC/BD

Notarization No.: 4439 L Book No.: 01 /2028 TP/CC-SCC/BD

CONG CHUNG VIEN
PUBLIC NOTARY

o Fs. LI — el e
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DOMNG MAI BUILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo, 25668 Pham Van Thuan, Tan Mai Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Provineo, Vielnam

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of Dong Mai Building Material and Fusl Jont Stock Company (hensinafles referrad
io ag the “Company”) is pleasad to submil this report along with the audited financial statements for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2024

1.

General information

Dong Mas Building Matenal and Fuel Joinl Stock Company was equitized from a slale-owned
anterprise according o Decision No. 286372003000 CT.UET dated Seplember 5, 2003, issuad
by the People's Committes of Dong Mai Province. The Company operales under the Joinl Stock
Enlerprise Registration Certificale Mo 4703000089 (new number is 3600661303) firstly issuad
by the Department of Planning and Investment of Dong Mai province on January 6, 2004 and
ragistered for the 218t change on November 21, 2024

The charter capital of the Company as of December 31, 2024, and January 1, 2024, is VND
158, 480,630,000, equivalent to 15,848,063 shares with a par valus of WND 10,000 per shan.

The Company's shares are fraded on the UPCol stock exchange at the Hanoi Stock Exchange
with the stock code BMF and the first trading day is Aprd 16, 2018_

According o the Business Registration Cerificate, the Company's business lines are:

Retail of fuel, angines in specialized slores. Delails: Gasaline, oil, grease, lubricants (anly
operating in case of meeting business conditions as prescribed by law),

Restaurants and mobde food sarvices. Dolails: Restaurants, eateries, food and beverage
establishments (excluding bars and beverage services with dancing) (only operabing as
approved by competent authorities and having sufficient business conditions according bo
the provisions of law),

Dealership of sutomobiles end other motor vehiclea. Details: Car deslership (12 seals or
less),

= Wholasale of agriculiural and forestry rew matenials (except wood, bamboao) and live animals.
Deatails: Wholesale of agricullural products (mplemented according to Decision Mo
G201 A0 0-TTg dated October 25, 2013 of the Prime Minisiar);

- Retad of olher new goods in specialized stores. Detads: Liguafind petrolaum gas. fuel (only
aparating in casa of mesting business conditions &5 presonbad by lew);

= Wholesale of materials and ofther installation egupment in construction, Detaits; Wholesale
of construclion matenals,

- Production of construction matenals from clay (nol produced & headquanens, nﬂrm
when fhe competent authorily approves fhe location and has sufficient business conditions
aconrding 1o fhe provisions of law);

Exploitation of stone, sand_ gravel and olay Details: Slone exploitation (only operating when
meeling business conditions as prescribed by law),

- Sale of spare pans and accessories lor automabies and othar motor vehicles;

«  \Wholesale of other household tems. Details: Household elecircal eppliances, mps and
elaatric lighting Ttings.

- Feal estate business, land use rights owned by the owner, user or lesses (only operaling in
case of meeting business condiions according (o reguiations of law);

Maintenance and repair of cars and ather mator vehicles (only operating in cass of mesling
business condilions as prescribed by law),

Retail of hardwara, paini, glass and other construction instaliation eguipment in specialized
siores, Details: Ratail of consiruction matenals,

Wholesale of solid, liquid and gaseous fuels and related products. Dedails: Gasoling, o,
wm,wmpmmmmmmdmmm
conditions as prescribed by law),

Flanting oflwr perenmial plants. Details: Planiing industnal trees (not opsrating &t
headquariers).

During the year, the Company's mam actvities were refalling of gasoline, oll, lubncants, liqguefied
patroleum gas and fusls

1




DOMNG MAI BUILIING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
MNo. 2658 Pham Van Thuan, Tan Mai Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Mai Provinos, Yietnam

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The

Ho.
1

i []

"

of the Company |s localed at No. 2568 Pham Van Thuan, Tan Mai Ward, Blen
Hoa City, Dong Mai Province, Vietnam.
Additionally, the Company has the lollowing affilistes.

Unit name

Hung MNghia Petrol filing stalion -
Branch of Dong Mai Bullding Malenial
and Fuel Joint Slock Company

Mui Le Peiral filling statlon - Branch of
Dong tai Building Matenal and Fusal
Joint Stock Company

long Phuoc Petral filling stalion -
Branch of Dong Mai Building Matarial
and Fual Joint Stock Compary

Trang Bom Pelrol filing stston -
Branch of Domng Nal Building Matarial
and Fusl Joint Siock Company
Pairol filling siakion No. 2 - Branch of
Dong Nad Building Material and Fuel
Joind Stock Company

Tan Bien Petrol filling station - Branch
of Dong Mai Buillding Material and
Fual Jont Stock Company

An Binh Petrol filling station - Branch
of Dang Nat Building Material and
Fuel Joint Stock Company

Phu Binh Petrol filling station - Branch
of Dong Mail Building Material and
Fugl Joint Stock Company

Trang Dai Il Gas Station - Branch af
Dang Nai Building Malerial and Fus|
Joint Stoeck Company
Representative Office in Ho Chi Minh
Cily - Dong Nai Building Material and
Fuel Joint Stock Company

Suoi Nhe Petrol lilling statien - Branch
of Dong Mai Building Matanal and
Fusl Jonl Stock Company

Address

Mo, 1, Hung Mghia Hambel, Netional Highway
14, Hung Loc Commune, Thang Nhat Cistricy,
Dong Mai Province, Vietnam

Mafional Highway 1A, Group 14, Hambsl B, Xuan
Tam Commune, Xuan Loc District, Dong Mai
Provinee, Westnam

Mo, 1289, National Highway 51, Group 25, Dat
Mol Hamiel, Long Phuoc Commune, Long
Thanih District, Dong Mai Provnce, Vietnam
Mo, 242, Nguyen Huu Canh Streel, Quarier 3,
Trang Bom Town, Trang Bom District, Dang Mai
Province, Vieinam

Mo, 218, Pham Yan Thuan Sirest, Tan Tien
‘Ward, Been Hoa City, Dong Nai Provincs,
Viatnam

Mo, 474/8, Quarter 58, Cau Sap Inlersaction,
Haniol Highway, Tan Blen Ward, Bien Hoa City,
Dong MNai Provincs, Vietnam

Mo 14, Quarter 10, Hanoi Highway, An Binh
Wiard, Bien Hoa Cily, Dong Mai Province,
Wietnzm

Mo, 2823, National Highway 20, Group 4, Phu
Tan Hamiei, Fhu Binh Commune, Tan Fhi
District, Dong Mal Province, Vietnam

Mo, 36, Quarter 3, Group 10, Bul Trong Mghia
Strest, Trang Dail \Ward, Bien Hoa Cily, Dong
Hai Province, Vietnam

L10-06, 10th Floar, Vincom Center Bullding, No,
72 Le Thanh Ton Streel, Ban Nghe Ward,
District 1, Ho Chi Minh City, Visinam

Backroad 18, Group ¥, Hamiet 58, Xuan Bac
Commune, Xuan Loc Distriat, Dong Mal
Prowmce, Vielnam

i Members of the Board of Directors, the Board of Supervisors, and the Board of
Managemeant

Thﬂﬂlﬂﬂhmﬂdﬁmmhﬂmddm,ﬂhwﬂw
of the Company for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, and up i the date of this report

inchude

Board of Dirsctors:

Full nama Paosition

M. Mguyen Thanh Hoa Chairman ol the Board

fr. Le Minh Khue Member

Wr, Wu Hoang Huynb Member

Mr. Mguyen Hoang Linh Marmiber

Mr. Mguyan Van Chi Memiar Appointed on April 18, 20024
Wir. Pham Van Mam Mamber Dismissad on Apdil 16, 2024
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DONG MNAI BUILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCKE COMPANY
Mo, 25568 Pham Van Thuan, Tan Mai Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Mal Province, Vietnam

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board of Supervisors:

Full nama Position

Ms. Y Thi Mai Phuong Haad of Board

Ms. Hguyen Thi Tham Membier

M. Nguyan Quoc Duong Mamiber Appointed on April 16, 2024
Ms. Tran Thi Ngoc Anh Member Dismissad on April 16, 2024
Board of Managemonl:

Full nams Position

Mr. Mguyen Hoang Link Dingctor

s, Mguyen Thi Kim Qanh Depuly Direcion

Ms. Tran Thi Al Lisn Deputy Direcio Appointed an January 01, 2024
Legal representative

The legal representative of the Company for the fiscal year anded December 31, 2024, ard up
to the fime of prepanng this report is as follows:

Full nama Mationality Pasition
ir. Mguyen Hoang Linh Visinamass Direchon

3 Business assessment
The business perlormance resulls of the Company for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024,
and the financial posilion as of December 31, 2024, are presanied in the aitached Financial
Statemenis

i, Evenis ccourring after the balance shoot date

Mo significant events have occurred since the end of the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024,
thal would necessiale adjustments or disclosure in the notes to the inancial statoments.

6 Auditor

.

AFC Vietnam Audiling Co., Lid has been appointed to sudil the Company's linancal statemenis
fior the fiscal year anded December 31, 2024,

6. Announcemant of the responsibility of the Board of Management for the Financial
Statemants

The Company’s Board of Management is responsible for establishing the financial statements,
refiacting honesily and reasonably the financial position, resulés of its opaerations and cash flows
for the fiscal year ended Dacember 31, 2024 In preparation of this Financial Stalements, the
Board of Management must:

- Mahe judgments and estimates that are reasonalde and prudest;

- Siate whelher the accounting stendards applied 1o the Company and all maieral
misstaloments have been disdosed and explaned in the Finanoial Statements,

- Prepare this financial statement on the going concern basis unless il is inappropriate |o
prasurm thal the Company will continue In business.

. Establish and implement an effective intermal condrol system to minimize the nsh of material
misstatement, whethar due o fraud or eror, in the preparation and presentstion of the
Financial slataments.

The Board of Management ansures thal the relevant accounting books are kepl in full to reflect

ihe financsal position of the Company's operalions with reasonable accuracy al any time and the '

accounting books and separate financial stelements are prepared in accordance with the
3




DOMG NAI BUILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo 2558 Pham Van Thaan, Tan Mal Ward, Blen Hoa City, Dong Nal Provines, Vietnam

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

applicable Acoounding system. The Board of Managemsn| ane also respontible for saleguarding
ihe assels of the Company and hence for taking reasonable sleps for the prevention and
dalection of fraud and olhar megulariiies.

Thia Board of Managemen! has pledged 10 comply with the above requirements in preparing the
separate financaal statements.

] Approval of Financial Statements

The Board of Direclors has approved the aitached Finencial Statemenis. The fnancial
stalements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at Decamber 31,
2024, =s wall &s iis resulls of operations and cash fows for the year ending on December 31,
2024, in accordance with current \Vietnamese accounting standasds, ihe Vietnamese Accounting
Mhﬁﬁlﬂn-ﬁﬂmhﬂmmﬁqhﬂmﬂmﬂm
ol tinanciad statements.

e
.

NGUYEN THANH HOA
Chalrman of the Board
Dong Mai, dated March 10, 2025




Mo.. 271/2025/BCKT-HCM, 00814

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Dear:  Shareholders, Board of Directors and Board of Management
Dong Mai Building Materisl snd Fusl Joint Stock Company

W have audited the accompanying financisl statements of Dong Mai Building Material and Fuel Joint
Siock Company (herein refermed 1o a3 "Company™), lormad on February 20, 2025, from page 7 io page
42, including the balance shests at December 31, 2024, Income slatemeant, Cash llow statemant for
the fiscal year ending on the same day and Noles o the financial stalements.

Responsibilities of the Board of Managemeni

The Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and the ue and fair presentation of
mmmammmmmmmm
Vietnamese enterprise acooutling regime and the legal provisicns retating to the preparation and
prasentation of financial stalements and are responsible for mternal control thal the Board of
Managemenl doems il necessary lo ensune the preparation and presentation of Financial statements
withoul maleral misstatements due o fraud or confusion

Responsibiliies of auditors

Our responsibility 15 to express an opmion on the financial statement based on auditing results. We
conducied our audil in accordance with Vieinamese Audibng Stendards These standards require ihal
we must comply wilh industry slandarde and regulations, plan and execule (he audil 1o oblain
reasonable assurance on whether the Company's Financial statements are free from malerial
misstatement ar not,

An audil imolves (o perform procedures 1o obtain sudit evidance about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The selecled procedures are based on the sudilor's judgment, ncluding
Iha assessment of the rsks of malarial misstaternent of the financial statements due to fraud or amror,
When assessing these risks, the suditor considers the Company's intermal contrals ralevant to the
preparation and fair presendation of ihe Financtal stalemenis in order o design audil procedures thal
are appropriale (o actual sifuations, bul not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's mtemal controls.  Audiling also included evaluating the
appropriateness of applcable accounting policies and the reasonablensss of accounting eshmates
made by the Board of Managemsant, &8 well as evaluating the owerall presantation of the Financial
HlaElemEn s

‘Wi believe thal the audil evidence we have obiained is sulficieni and appropriate o provide o basis
for our audit opinion

Basis of audit opinion except

Ag prasented n section 5.4.1 of the Financial Statement Moles, the advance payment to Vietnam il
Joint Stock Company as of December 31, 2024, amounting lo WMD 37,891 800,000, is currently being

for repayment by Ms, Mal Thi Mgoc Trinh through the ransfer of land use rights and assats
attached o the land according o the Commitment dated NMowember 3, 2022, As of the dale of this
financial staternend, ihe Company has nol yel compleled the procedures for the ransier of land use
rights and attached assets mantioned above, therefore the sdvance paymant to the seller of Viet Oil
Joinl Stock Company has not yel been offssl.

-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (To be continued)

Qualifisd opinion

I oy opinicn, except for the effects of the issues stated |n the paragraph "Basis of excepling auditing
opinions”, the financial stalements reflected honestly and reasonably, on the key aspects of the
financial situation of Dong Nal Bullding Malerial and Fuel Joint Siock Company as al December 31,
2024, as well as the business resulls and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Accounting standards, Vistnamese enterprise accounting syslem and other legal regulations relaled
I tha preparation and presentation of the separate financial statenmns

The issues should be emphasized

Mot disputing (he aferementioned opinion, we would like o

statement readers o Mems 5.5.1 and 5.16.1 of the Noles to the Financial Statements, the Company
is recording oiher receivables and other payables relalad lo the rental of premises of Viel - Mhal
Automabile Trading Company Limited ("Viel Nhat) under lease contract No. 15/VLTE-TN dated
Decembear 25, 2014, By December 27, 2023, Vial Mhal will no longer iease the premises and will hand
aver the premises (o the Company, Al the time of this sialement's release, Viet Nhat and the Company
are slill negotiating the handling of this debd,

Diur gqualified audit opinien is nol related to Ihe aforementioned emphasis of maller

NGUYEN THI THANH MINH LE HUYNH BAD

Deputy General Director Auditar

Audit practioa registration cerificals number Fudit practos registration carilicate numbses
0068- 202 3-009-1 5449-2021-008-1

AFC VIETHAM AUDITING CO,, LTD
Ho Chi Minh, dated March 10, 2025
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OONG MAI BUILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo, 2558 Pham Van Thuan, Tan Mai Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Frovince, Vieinam

BALANCE SHEET
&5 of December 31, 2024

December 31, 2024 January 01, 2024
TARGETS Codes Moles VND WHD
ASSETS
A- CURRENT ASSETS 100 &28,7086, 383,141 624,829,174,063
L. Cash and cash squivalents M0 &1 42 820 436 447 19,964,678 698
1. Cash m 17,620,435 447 19,964 578 5898
2. Cash equivalents 112 25, 000, 000, 000 -
Il. Short4term financial investmant 120 &2 268,300,000,000 284, 170,000,000
1. Securities trading 121 = =
2. Provsion for impairment of trading 122 3 5
seCiUnties
3. Investment held 1o maturity date 123 258,300,000,000 294, 170,000,000
I, Short-term receivables 130 152,105,465,172 142,421,273, 648
1. Shari-term recenables from cusfomers 1 53 £9,273,024,163 01,764 266 680
2. Shont-term advances o suppliers 132 54 48,885 516,803 44 T84 TE3 TS
3 Short-term intra-company recaivablas 133 - -
4. Receivables under schedule of 134
conslructon contract
5. Shori-term loans receivables 135 - -
8. Other shorl-lerm receivables 138 55 10,199,043, 981 10,822,352,372
7. Provision for short-term doubiful 137 ga {10,165 927 569) (8,843 917 258)
racaivables
8. Shortage of asssts awaiting resolution 1@ &7 3,913,807,794 3,913,807,704
IV. Invaniory 140 58 176,108,808,953 162,954 348,463
1. Inventary 141 175, 108,800,953 162 004 348 463
2. Prowision for mventory discount 148 - -
V. Other current assets 150 670,571,568 5,178,973,458
1. Short-term exXpENSEs 151 59 357 683,568 408,046 602
2 Value addod tax deducied 152 212 872,001 4 BT0 926 A56
3 Taxes and other receivables from State 153 - -
4 Governmant bonds purchased for resale 154 - -

§. Other current assets

X
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DOMG MAI BUILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo. 2558 Pham Van Thuan, Tan Mal Ward, Ben Hoa Cily, Dong Mai Provinoe, Vieinam

BALANCE SHEET
As of Decamber 31, 2024
December 31, 2024 January 01, 2024

TARGETS Codes MNolss VD VHD
B - NON-CURRENT ASSETS 200 B8,000,6836,762 82,783,168,727
L. Mon -surrent recsivables 210 4,137,188,000 2,123.338,000
1. Long-term receivablas from cusiomers 2N - -
2 prapayments o 212 B4 3,207 296,000 1,304 448,000
3. Working capital provided to sulb-units 13 - -
4. Long lerm imemal receivables 214 = -
8. Long-term loans recatvables 218 - 7
6. Othed jong-laem recevables 216 55 929 890,000 728,890,000
7 Provision for doubtful long-lerm 218 ‘ .
receivables
IL Flxad assats 220 20,280,446,360 19,318, 464 ATO
1. Tangibie fixad assats 21 51 8,132.978,058 8,051 544,124
- Cost/ Histonical cosi > 36,968,731 046 34,091 BET 241
- Ancumulated depreciation 223 (27,835,753, 887) (26,040,323.117)
2 Leased fixed assels 24 * -

Cost! Historical cost 26 ¥ B

Accumulated 226 - -
4 Intangible fixed asasts 2T B 11,157 468 301 11,267,920, 746
- Gostf Historical cosl 228 12,677 677,564 12877677 564

Acoumulated depreciation 29 1,520,209,263) {1,409,756.,818)
. Investmant proporties 30 - -
- Costl Historical cost 2N - -
- Accumulaied depreciation 232 =
. assets in progress 240 228,250,000 .
1. Long-term unfinishad production and 241 - v
busimess Costs
2 Conslruction cosi in progress M2 226, 250,000 -
Y. Leng-term financial investment Z60 52 81,188 503, 884 58,476.632,030
1 Investments m subsidianes 251 - =
2 nwes! in joint venturas, associales 52 51,313,489 776 48,913,222 958
3, Inwesting capital in alher companies 253 10,000, 000000 10,000,000,000
4. Prowision hor bong-tenm financial 254 (126,685, T54) (436,590, 06H)
invesiments
£, Investmenl neld to maturty dato 255 - -
W1, Othar non-current assets 260 2,169,948 408 1,863,723 827
1. Long-ierm prepaid axpanses .3 % 2,159,948 408 1,863,723 827
2 Duefarmed income lax assets 262 = .
3, Long-term equipment and spare paris for 263 - -
4 Other long-larm assets 268 2 =
TOTAL ASSETS F] T16,708,018,893 707,612,332, 780




DONG NAI BUILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo, 2558 Pham Van Thuan, Tan Mai Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Mai Province, Vietnam

BALANCE SHEET
As of Decembaer 31, 2024

January 01,
TARGETS Codes Moles December 31, 2024 2024
WND WND
CAPITAL
G« LIABILITIES 100 536,833,975, 707 E43,683,268,616 !
L. Current liabilitios 30 630,378, 776,701 639,089,701,848
1, Short-term payable to sellers 3l 612 2,185,116, 757 2,040 408, 758
2. Shor-term advances from cusiomans M2 513 5,292 876 607 3,788 458 008
3. Taxes and other payables to State budget 313 514 2,503 374 89y 316,261 447
i, Payables o employees 314 2,088,238 625 1,737 ,350,585
5. Short-lerm actiusd expenses M5 516 2 670,955,870 1,456,544 690
B. Sha-lerm 3B - -
7. Payables under schadule of construction 317 -
contract
&. Short-term wnrealized revenue KAL:] 120,545 455 60,000,000
0. Dther short-term payables M0 6516 3,003 348 917 3,152 484,777
10, Shorl-term loans and 30 517 E11 689,288 909 525 607 166,020
11. Provigion of shori-lerm payables a2 - v .
12 Bonus and welfare 322 518 842,029 564 842 029 564
13. Price stabilization fund az3 - -
14 Govermnmeant bonds purchased far resale 324 = -
I, Non-gurrent liabilities 330 &, 267,200,008 4,593 666, 667 1
1. Long-term accounts payable o suppliers 331 - -
2. Long-larm prepayment by buysrs 332 -
acorusd axpenses 333 - -
i Intra-company payables for oparating 334 = ¢ B
5 Long-term intarcompany payables 335 . = !
& Long-lerm unrealzed lurmover 336 = -
7. Oithver bong-tanm a7 b6 5,183 566 667 4 503 566,667 4
8. Long-Aetm borrowings and finance lease 338 5.17 1.083.633,339 . 1
8 Comwerlible bonds 33 - -
10. Praferred shares 340 - -
11, Payable defarred noome tax 3 - -
12. Prowvision far non-curment accounts 342 - -
payable
13. Funds for scence and technology 343 3 a

e e e el e o




DOMG MAI BUILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo. 2668 Pham Yan Thuan, Tan Mai Weard, Bien Hoa Gity, Dong Nai Province, Vietnam

BALANCE SHEET
As of December 31, 2024

Codes Nok Decamber 31, 2024 Jarvuary 01, 2024
™ YWD VD
D - OWNER'S EQUITY 400 180,072,043, 188 163,529,064,174
| Dwmier's sguity 40 518 180,072,043, 186 163.929,084,174
1. Capital contributed by fhe owner 411 158, 480,630,000 158,480 630,000
- Common shares wilh voling righls 411a 156, 480,630,000 158,480 630,000
- Prefarrad shares 411b - g
2. Share 412 - -
3. Dption to comeen bonds 43 = -
4. Oiher capilal of ihe owner 414 . ;
6. Traasury shares (*) 415 = -
B. Assel revaluation difference 418 - 5
7. The exchangs rate diferences 417 - -
&8, Development & investmant fund 418 . $
9. Fund 1o suppon business arangemants 419 . d
100 Othver equity funds 420 - -
11. Undistributed eamings 41 21,581 413,186 5448 434 174
= Uindistributad curmulstive after-lax profit 421a 5448434174 520,100
from the pernicd
« Profil afler tax not yel disiibuted in his 421b 16,142 879,012 5447 914,074
pariod
12. Capital expendiure funds 422 . .
Ii. Funding sources and other funds 430 - -
1, Funding 431
2. Funds used for fived assel acquisition 432 -
EReTY
_{Signed) ASigned) = (Signedandsealed) 00000
MGUYEN HOANG THAI TROMG WU THI MM THANH MGUYEN HOANG LINH

Prapared by Chief ascountant

R R TR T e,

Dong Nai, dated March 10, 2025

[1]




DONG HAl BUILDING MATERLAL AND FLUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Mo Z558 Pham Yan Thuan, Tan Mal Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Mai Province, Vielnam

INCOME STATEMENT
for the fiscal year ended December 319, 2024

Yeoar of 2024 Yoar of 2023
ITEMS Codes  Notes VND VND
1. Revenues from sales and services o 3,420,009,031,516  3,517,006,518,002
2. Deductions from revenues a2 - 11 874,366
3, et sales of sales and servies
provision (10= 01-02) 10 61  3,420,009,031,516  3,517,074,643,637
4, Cost of goods 1 6.2 3,343, 780,961 161 3444 416 802,573
6. Groas profit from sale of goods and o
provision of services (20 = 10 - 11) 76,228,060, 365 72,667 841,064
& Revenus from inancial activities 4 S | 13,750 162 662 13,510, 166,849
7. Financial expenses 2 B4 24,943 077, 7O 29,801 854,214
- In which' Inferest expenses 23 25,262,082 874 20,365 263, 246
8 Selling expenses 2% 65 23,850,879,203 26,300,037 550
9. Genoral and sdminsiralion expenses 6 66 20,571,684, 705 21,535.8508.275
10. Net profit from business operations
(30 = 20 + (21 - 22) - (25 + 26)) 30 20,612,571,409 B.930,276,874
11. Diher income b7 B7 431,378,721 1.2765.292.318
12 Other sxpanses 2 68 786,355 348 925,958,341
13. Other profit (40 = 31 - 32) 40 (334,978,627) 349,336,978
14, Accounting gross profit before @x
(505 30 + 40) 50 20,277,682, 782 9,279,812 862
15, Current corporate mcome tax expenss Bl 514 4134813770 3,831,608,778
16. Deferrad corporate income lax axpenses 52 _ - B -
17, Profit after corporate income tax T i
(802 80 - 51 ~ B2) &0 18,142,979,012 5,447,814,074
18. Basic earnings per share 0 &8 1.018 73
_(Signed) iSigned) ~ (Signed and sealed)
NGUYEN HOANG THAI TRONG YU THI KIM THANH NGUYEN HOANG LINH
Prapared by Chief ascountant Dimector

Dong Mai, daled March 10, 2025

n




DONG HAl BUILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo 2658 Pham Yan Thuan, Tan Mal Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Mai Provincs, Vietram

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
{Under Indirect method)
far the fiscal year ended December 31¢, 3034
Cod Yoar of 2024 Year of 2023
by WND VHD
I. GASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTMITIES
1- Acoounting profit bafore tax m 20,277,682, 782 9,279,612 852
of amounis

[Ilpu:hlun of led assels and myvesimani ®@ 2.684.711,103 2,794,836 408
properiies
Provisions 03 1.012,105,137 2,952 238,122
Foreign exchange difference (gainsplosses duelo 04 - .
revaluation of monetary items of foreign currencies
{Profity/ loss from investing acivities 05 (13,802 BAS 834) {13,910 186 848)
Interes] pxpenses 1 3] 25,252 a2 aT4 20,365 263 246
Other adjusiment ilems ar = %
3. Profits from trading bafors changes in 0B 35,424,501,962 30,481,763,779

W decrease in receivables 09 (7,494,610,576) 100,619,185 508

Jidecrease inverntory 10 (12,194,661 490) (103,532,351 934)

i accounts " 2,800.575,774 {8, 425,072.814)
(excluding H‘}n interest payable, corporate incomse
3
{Incressa) /decreate in prapaid sxpanses 12 (245 BT2 547) {348 267 04T}
Incieass of decrease in ireding sacurities 13 - -
Intares| paid 14 (25,433 421 555) (29,183, 680,747)
Paid mcorme tax 15 {1,850,000,000) -
Cther procesds from operaling activilies 16 . -
Other iitures on operating activities 17 . - -
Net cash flow from operating activities 20  (8,904.388432) _ (11,789,372,380)
Il. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTMENT
ACTIVITIES
1. Paymant for purchases or consiniction of fived Zi (2,830,742 583) {674 834 658)
assels and offer long befm Sssels
2 Proceeds from disposals, sales of fived assets s 52 12T 272 -
and other long-term assets
3 Loans o and payments for purchase of debl 23 (153, 600, 000, 00 (270, 470,000,000}
instruments of other entitas
4 Collections from bormowars and proceeds from 24 189,470,000 000 103, 800,000,000
disposal of debl mslruments of other enlities
5. Expendilures on equity investmants in ather 25 (1,400,266 TBO) (48,813,222 956)
eniities
G Fecovery of myestments in other antities 26 - -
7. Intgres! and dividends received pid _12.B82.771,156 9.808,771,232
Met cash flow from investmants activities a0 id 674,489,065
. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
1. Procaeds from the issue of shares, receipt of a & -
coniribytion capital of the owner
2. Payment of capilal contributed lo owners, 32 -
of shares issued by the business

3. Proceeds from bormowing 3 2,916,169,063, 184 2 500, T44 858 594
4. Repayment of loan k] I,‘E.M'I.‘rﬂ.m.ﬂﬁl {2,204 506 0456 474)
6. Repayment of linancial principal *» *
6. Dividends or profits paid o awners ) R : -
Met eash flow from financing 40 {13,014,343,773) 206,238,812,120
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DONG NAI BLILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo, 2558 Pham Van Thuain, Tan Mai Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dang Nal Province, Vietnam

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
for the fiscal vear ended Decembar 219, 2024

Yaar of 2024 Year of 2023
T o ND VHD
MET CASH FLOW IN THE YEAR
LT e s
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations an foreign &1 = %
mmﬁﬁmnmm
OF YEAR TO 42 620,436 447 18,964 ,678,686
{70 =50 + 60 + 81)
_{(Signed) iSignedy  (Signed and sealed)
NGUYEN HDOANG THAI TRONG WU THI KIM THANH HGUYEN HOANG LINH
Prepared by Chief acoountant Director

Dong Mad, dated March 10, 2025
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DONG MA| BUILDING MATERIAL AMD FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo, 2566 Pham Van Thuan, Tan Mai Ward, Blen Hoa City, Dong Nal Province, Vietnam

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the fiscal ywar ended December 31%, 2024

This note i5 an infegral part fo be read in conjunction with he attached financial stalements

%
11

1.2

13
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OPERATION CHARACTERISTICS

Form of squity cwnarship

Dong MNai Buiding Matersl and Fuel Jaint Stock Company ("the Company”) is an enterprise
equitized from a state-owned enterprise according fo Decision No. 2063200000 CT.UBT dated
September 5, 2003 issued by the People’s Commiltes of Dong Mai province, The Company
operates undar the Joint Stock Entarprise Registration Cerfificate Mo, 4T0G00008S (new numiber
iz 3B006E1 303) frstly issued by the Depariment of Planning and Investment of Dong Nai province
an Jamuary 6, 2004 and registered for the 215t changs on Movember 21, 2024

The charter capital of the Company as of December 31, 2024, and January 1, 2024, is VND
158, 480,630,000, equivalent to 15,848,063 shares wilh a par value of YND 10,000 per shara.

The Company's shares are traded on the LIPCoM stock exchange at the Hanoi Stock Exchange
wilh the stock code BMF and the firs! trading day is Apel 16, 2018.

The headquarners of the Company is located at No. 2558 Pham Van Thuan, Tan Mal Ward, Bien
Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, Vietriam.

Business lines

The company oparates in the field of commerce

Business lines

According to the Businass Registration Cenificale, the Company’s business lines are

«  Retail of fued, engines in specialized stores. Details: Gasoline, oll, greasa, lubricants (mnly
oparaling in case of mesling business conditions as prascribed by law),

« Restaurants and mobile food servioes. Datafls: Restawrants, eateries, food and beverage
sstablishments (excluding bars and beverage services wilh dancing) (only operating ae
approved by competen! authorities and having sufficien! business condilions ]
the provisions of law),

- Dealership of automoblles and other malor vehicles, Details: Car dealership (12 Seats or
less);

Whiolesale of agricutiural and forestry raw malasials (sxcept wood, bamboo) and live animals.
Dataile: VWholesale of agncultural products (implemented according to Decision Mo
BH201300-TTy dated Ootober 26, 2013 of the Prime Ministar),

Retail of other new goods in specialized stores. Details: Liguefied petroleumn gas, fuel (only
operating in case of mesting business conditions as prescribed by law),

- \Wholesale of materiale and other installabon eguipment in construclion. Delails. Wholesale
ol construction matenals;

Production of construction materials from clay (not produced al headquarters, uﬂrnpnm
when tha competent authorily approves the location and has suflicient business conditions
aocording 1o the provisions of law),

- Emﬂmmwﬂmmnﬂ Stone exploiation (only operating whern

- mdmmmwmmmmmm
- Viholesale of other household tems. Deteils: Household electrical appliances, lamps and
alectric lighting fittngs;
- Roeal eslsts business, land use nghls owned by the ownar, user or lessea (only aperating n
law),

business condilions as prescrbed by law),

- Fedall of hardware, painl, glass and olfer construction installstion equipment in specialized
stores. Detais: Retail of construction malerials;
Whalesale of solid, liquid and gassous fusls and relaled products Details: Gasoline, oil,
lubricants, igusfied mwmmmmmhmumw
condifions as prescribed by

- wﬁwmﬁmmwwmmwu
headguaners)
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OONG MAI BUILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo, 2558 Pham Van Thuan, Tan Mai Ward, Bien Hea City, Dong Mal Provines, Vietinam

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
foar thea fipcal year ended December 31%, 2024

This noie is an iiegral parf fo be read in conjunclion with he altached financial sialements.

PR T 4

Durnng fhe yaar, lhe Company's man aclivilies were realing of gasohine, oil, ubneants, lguefied
patrdeum gas and fuels.

1.4 Mormal business and production pariod

Normal production and businass cycle of the Company does nol exceed 12 months.
1.5  Company Structure

Affiliates

The company has 2 affiisles, including’

Hame of the Established according  Address Business linas Ownership
Company 1] ratio

Rang Ding Food Enterpriss ragetration Mo, 018 Hanol Public dining, indusirial ~ 44%
Company Limited earlificals Mo, Highway, Tan Bien maal processing, food

1896 |
Long Thanh Joint  Enlerprise registration Mo, 288, Le Duan Business of fual, foad 33.36%
Stock Trading carlificate Mo. Straet, Van Hai Area;, lechnology, electronics,
Compary 36800445350 issued for  Long Thanh Town, and commercial sarvices
the fiwst limae on January  Long Thanh Districk,
19, 2000 Daong Mal Provines 4
'.
Infermation en branch ‘-.'.J
The company has the following afiiates ‘
'
Ne. Unit name Address {
1 Hung Mghia Petrol station Mo, 1, Hung Nghia Hamist, National Highway 14,
Branch of Dong Mai Bullding Material  Hung Loc Commune, Thong Nhat District, Dong Nai |
and Fuel Joint Stook Company Provincs, Vietnam

2 MuiLe Petrol filling station - Branch of  National Highway 1A, Group 14, Hamiet B, Xuan
Dong Nai Building Msterial and Fusl  Tam Commine, Xuan Loc District, Dong Nai

Joint Siock Company Province, Vistnam

3 Long Phuoc Petrol filling statian - Mo 12869, National Highway 51, Group 25, Dat Moi
Branch of Dong Mai Busiding Matersal  Hamiel, Long Phuoc Commune, Lang Thanh Disirict,
and Fuel Joint Stock Company Dong Nai Provincs, Vietnam

4 Trang Bom Petral Filing station - Mo, 242, Nguyen Huu Canh Sireet, Quarter 3, Trang
Branch of Dong Mai Building Material  Bom Town, Trang Bom Disirict, Dong Nai Provinoe,
and Fual Joint Stock Company Vietnam

6 Pairol filing station Mo. 2 - Branch of  No. 219, Pham Van Thuan Streel, Tan Tien Ward,
Dong Med Bullding Materisl and Fuel  Bien Hoa City, Dong Nal Province, Viebnam
Joint Stock Company

6 Tan Bien Petrol filing station - Branch Mo 4748, Quarier 58, Cau Sap Intersecton, Hanoi
of Dong Nai Building Material and Fuel Highway, Tan Bien Ward, Bien Hoa Cily, Dang Nai
Jownl Slock Company Provinca, Vietnam

7 An Binh Petrol filling station - Branch of Mo, 14, Quarder 10, Hanoi Highesay, An Binh Ward,
Dong Mal Building Material and Fusl  Béen Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, Vietnam
Joim Stock Cormpany

& Phu Binh Patrol filing stafion - Branch  Mo. 2823, National Highway 20, Group 4, Phu Tan |
of Cong Mai Building Malerial and Fusd Hambat, Ptiu Binh Commane, Tan FPhu District, Dong l
Juoinl Stock Company Mal Province, Vislnam
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1.7

1

a1

32

4.1

No. Unit name Bddress

@ Trang Dai il Gas Stalion - Branch of  No, 38, Quarter 3, Group 10, Bui Trang Mghia Strest,
Dong Mai Building Material and Fuel  Trang Dai Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province,
Joint Slock Company Wiatnam

10 Representative Office in Ho Chi Minh  L10-08, 10ih Floor, Vincom Center Building, No. 72
City - Dong Nai Building Material and  Le Thanh Ton Streel, Ben Nghe Ward, District 1, Ho
Fuel Joint Stock Company Chi Minh City, Vietnam

11 Suoi Mho Petrol filling station - Branch  Backroad 16, Group 7, Hamlet 58, Xuan Bac
of Dong Nal Building Materisl and Fusl Commune, Xuan Loc District, Dong Mai Province,
Jaint Siock Company Vietnam

Declaration on the comparabllity of iInformation on the finangial statements

The figures presentad in the financial statemants for the fiscal year ended Decamber 31, 2024 |
are comparable with the comesponding figures for the previous pariod.

As of Decembar 31, 2024, the tolal number of employees of the Company was 121 (as of
Decamber 31, 2023: 133 peoplha)

FISCAL YEAR, CURRENCY UNITS USED IN ACCOUNTING

Fiscal year

The Company's fiscal year begins on January 01 and ends on Decsmber 3181 each year i
The currency used in acoounting I

The currency used in accounting is Vietnam Dong (VND) because the revenue and expenditure
are mainty mada in YND. i

APPLICABLE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND REGIME

Standards and regime of sccounting applisd i

The financial stalements are prepared and presented i acocordance wilth ihe Enlerprice
Aceounting ime issued under Circular No, 200/2014/TT-BTC daled Dacember 22, 2014, by
the Ministry of mﬁmmmmmmm.nmm1mmmmn
2016, and the Vietnamess Accourting Standards

The company applies the accounting standards and the Vieinamese enierprise accounling
regime promulgated under Ciroular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC, Circular No. 53/201&/TT-BTC, and
other circulars gusding the implementation of Vieinemese accounting standards by e Ministry
aof Finance in the praparation and preseniation of fingnocial statements.

Declaration of compliance with acoounting standards and accounting

The Board of Managament of the Company ensures thal compliance with fhe requirements of

secounling slandards, the Vietnamesa Corporate Accounting Regime issued under Croudar No. {
POIZDVATT-BTC, Ciwcular Mo, S32018TT-BTC, as well a8 the circulars guiding the
implamentation of accounting standards by the Ministry of Finance, has bean adhered o in the
preparation of the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of financial statamant




DOKNG NA| BUILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo 2558 Pham Van Thuan, Tan Mai Ward, Bien Hoa Cily, Deng Mal Province, Vietnam

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the fiscal year ended Decermber 315, 2024
Thus nole is an infegral par (o be rea in conjunchion with e attached financial slatements

Tha financial statemenls are prepared on the scorual bass of sccounting (except for information
relaled v cash flows).

4.3 Foreign currency transactions

Ciuring the year, transactons dencminatad in currencies other than WHD are converted fo WD
al the actual exchangs rale al the ftime of the transaction. Al the end of the fecal year, the
Company revalues monatary iams danommated in foregn curencies al ihe axchangs rate on
this date.

Exchange differences ansing during the year from transaclions in foreign cumencies are
recognized in financial income or financisl expenses. Foreign exchange difference dua o
revalation of monetary ilems denominated in foreign curmencies al the date of ending the fiscal
year after offsslling the increasing diference and the decreasing difference as recorded into
financial mEoime of (Nancal Bxpenses.

43  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand, demand deposits, cash in transil. Cash equivalents are shor-lerm
investments with a grace period of no more than 3 months from the dale of invesimeni and readily
eonvertible into known amaunts of cash and theme s no risk of being convered inlo cash at th
time af reporting,

A4 Financial investments
Held-to-maturity Investments
mmmnmummmmﬂwhﬂhmwmh

hold to maturity. mmmmmmmhm to maturity term bank deposits %
and loans for the purpose of eaming periodic interest, and ather haid 1o maturity investmenis. J

bass. Interest aarmed before held by the Company s recorded 85 a deduction from the original a
price ai the time of purchase,

Vihen ihare s definile evidence that part or all of the invesiment may not be recovered and the

amouni of laes can be refiably measured, the oes & recognized n inancial expenses during the
year and reduced directly the investmen! value.

When liquidating an investment, the difference bohssen (he nel lqudation value and he book
vahie is pecounted for as NooMe oF BXpEnNSE.

When there is definite evidence thal part or sl of the investment may not be recovered and the

Investments n associates

Associates are enliies in which the Company has signficant influsnce bul ol conirol oves
financial and operating paolicies. Significant influence s expressed In the right to parbcipate in
making decisions on he financial policies and operations of the invesles enterprise bul nol
comtrol these policies.

Invesimenis n associates are iniGally recognized al cosl, including acquisiion or capilal
contribution plus any directly atirbutable costs of investing. In casa of investment wilh non-
monetary assets, ihe cost of the investiment is recognized al the fasr value of the non-monelarny
assal al ihe ime of ansing.

17
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DOMNG dAl BUILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo, 2558 Pham Van Thuan, Tan Mai Ward, Bien Hea City, Dong Mai Province, Yietnam

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the fiscal year ended December 317, 2024

This nole {5 an infegral part to be read i conjunction with e attached financisl sialements.

Dividends and profits from panods prior to the investment beng purchased ane accounted for as
& reduction in the value of the nvestmant itsell. Dividends and profits from perods after he
investment is purchased ame recognized as revenus, Dhidends recetved in the form of shares
are only tracked by the increase in the number of shares, withoul recognizing the value of Ihe
shares recewed.

Pravision for losses on nvesiments in associates s mada when the associate sullers a lass, with
ihe provision equal to the diferenca batwean the aclual capital contributions of the parties in the
mwhmmmmmcmﬂmmmmm
I the total aciual capilal contributions of the parties in the associale. .

Increases and decreases in the provision for invesiment losses |n associales hal must be sel up
@l the end of the fiscal year are recorded in financial #xpenses.

YWhen liquidating an investmant, the difference between the net liquidation vakue and the book
wvalue is accounied for a8 income or expense. n

Capital contribution Investments in othar entities

Irwastmenl in capited contribution W another entity refers o imaestments 0 the eguity instruments
ﬂ;wmmnmm“mmmm ar segnificant influsncs
over the imestes.

Thass investments ars indially recognized al cost, which includes (he purchase prios of capital

contritution plus any direct costs associated with the investment activity, The Board of Genaral

Directors shall conduct & review of the investmants to recognize provisions al the and of the

acocounting period.

Provision for losses on invesimants in olher equily instruments iz as follows.

- The invesimeni in listed shares or the fair value of the mvestment is delermined refiably, the
pravision is madd based on the market value of the shares.

- For invesimenis whose fair value cannol ba delermingd al the reporiing date, provisioning is
camied oul based on the loss of the invesiee. The provision amount is calculated as the
difference betwean the actual capital contribution of the parties al the offer enlity and the
achsal aquity, multiplied by the Company's capital contribution ratio companed to the lotal
scthunl capital contribution of the parties at the olher enfity.

Incraase or decreasa in the provision for impairment of investments i equity instruments of ot
ariiies thal nesd o be established at the end of the fiscal yes s ecognized in fmencial
EXPENSES.

4.5 Raecaivables
Receivables are stated at cosl less allowance lor doubtiul debis.

The classilicalion of receivables is receivable from cusiomers and olher receivables ane carried

oul on the following prnciphes:

-  Fecsivables from cuslomers include trade recelvables ansing from @ sale and purchase
rarsaciion balwean the Company and the buyer, which is an enlify independant of the
Company

- Diher receivables reflect non-commercial receivables, nol related to buying and salling
iransactons

The allowance for doubiful debls represents the estimated loss dus 1o non-payment arising from

recalvables outstanding al the balance sheel date The esiablishment or reversal of the provision
for doubtful debts is recorded in he adminisrative expenses of the business on the income

statewmenl.
i8 E
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the fiscal year ended Decembar 31, 2024

This mode is an imegral par lo be read in comunciion with (he atfsched financial siatements

4.6

4.7

4.8

Inventory
Imvaniones are stated al the lower of cosi and nel realzabla value.

Cost ol invenionss is delermined as follows:

= Goods, iools, and instruments include purchase costs and oiber direclly relaled expenses
incurred o ablain inventory al iis current location and condition.

Met realizable valua it the eslimated selling price of mwenlories in ihe ordinary production and
business parnod minus the eslimaled cosls o complete and the estimated costs nacessary for
hgir sake.

Civiginal price of invenlones are detarmined by the weighted average mathod and are acoounted
far on & egular basis.

Provision for devaluation of imventores is made for each iem of inventones whose onginal cost
i greater than the nel realizable value. Increases and decreases (o the provision balance as al
ihe and of the accounting penod are recognized in cost of goods sold.

Propaid oxponses

Prepaid expenses include the aciually inourred cosis rdaled o ihe resulls of business sciivities
of many accounting penods. Prepaid expenses of the Company inchude the following expansas.

Tools, equipment, and other prepaid expenses

Diher toals, instruments, and prapaid expenses thal have been pul info wse are aliocated info
onsis using the straight-line method with an allocation period not axcesding 36 maonths.

Tangible fixed asasia

Tangible fixed assels are staled al cosl less accumulated depreciation. Histarical costs ol
langlble fixed assets include all the expeanses of the Company to have thess fixed asssts as of
the dates they are ready to be put Inlo use. Costs incurred after the mitial recognition ane
recognized anly to the axtent that # is probable that future economic banefits associated with the
use of the assel will substanhally increase The costs incurmed are nol satisfied these condilions
are repogrized as cost of production, sales in the year.

YWhen sssels are sold or disposed of, (her cosl and accumulated deprecialion are eliminaled
froim this financial statements and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is included in the
incoma statermant.

Depraciation of tangible fived assels is calculated using the straight-line depreciation method
over the estimated usaful lives of the assets as follows:

Mumber of years
Haousae, bullding materiaks 04 — 25
Machinery and sguipmant 03 - 10
Means of ransportation 04 =08
Equipment, managemand tools 04 - 10
Intangible flxed assets

intangable fixed assals are sialed al cosl less accumulated depreciation. Hislorical cosis of
Intangible lixed assels inclede &l the expenses of the Company 1o heve (hese fied assels as o
the dates thay are ready o be pul inlo use Expenditures refaled to intangible fixed assets
incumed afier initisl recognition are recognized as produchon and business expenses in the year
unless thay are tied 1o a specific inangible fxed assel and mereass the economic benalils of
thess assets.
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4.10

4.1

412

413

When Inlangible fixed assets are sold or disposed of, their cost and accumulaied depreciation
are willen off, and any gain of loas resulfing from (heir disposal is included In the income or
expanss for the year.

The Company's intangible fixed assels includa;
Land use rights

Land use nghls are all expenditures of the Company thal are directly aliributable 1o the use of
land, including: expanses for land use rights, expanses for compensation, ground clearance,
mmqmu,m“mmmmmww
over 46 - 50 years.

The purchase price of computer software that is nol an miegral part of the relevant hardware is
capitalized. The historical cost of computer software i& all expenses that the Company has spent
up to the time of pulting the software into use Compuisr software is depreciated using thi
straight-Bne mathod ower & period of 5 years

Liabilities and expenses payable

Liabiiles and expenses payable are recognized for the amounl payabie in the fulure relating o
the goods and services received. Expenses payable are recognized based on the estimated
estimates of the amount payable.

The classification of accounts payable 1 payable 1o suppliers, accrued expenses and other

payabies are made according 10 the following principles:

. Payables to suppliers reflect irade payables arising from purchazes of goods, services,
assels, and suppliers (hal ans indepandani of tha Company.

- [Payable expsnses reflect payables for goods and services received Irom the sallar of
providad 1o the buyer but have not yet been paid due io lack of invoices or insufficient
accounting records and documents and payables 1o employees in lerms of salary for leave,
production and business expenses lo be deducied in advance.

- Dither payables reflect payables that are non-commercial, nol related 1o the purchase, sals
and supply of goods and senvices

Salary

The salary allocaled to expenses in the yoar is based on the salary and allowsnces agresd on
ihe labor contract

Dedustions under salaries

Sovial insurance |s deduciad from (he basic salary according 1o the labor contract fo the cost of
17.5% and deducied from the salary of employees of B%

Health insurance is deducied from the basic salary lo fhe cost of 3% and deducted from the
salary of employees of 1 5%

Unemployment insurance is deducted from salaries and recorded as an expense at a rate of 1%,
and is also deductad from the salaries of employees ol & rate of 1%,

Union futiding is deducted at & rate of 2% from wages inlo expanses.

Capital contribubed by owners

Owners' equily is recorded according 10 the actual capital contributed by the shareholders
Furids

Funds are allocaled and uliized according to fhe Company's Charter
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4.8

4.18

Profit distribution

The afler-CIT profil is distribuled o sharshollers aller appropriation of lunds in aceordancs wilh

ihe Company's Charter as well as the provisions of the law and approvad by the General Meating
of Shareholders.

The distribuficn of prafits 1o members & considerad as non-manetary items in undistributed afer-
tax profits thal may affect cash fiow and the ability 1o pay dividends dus 1o rivaluaton of assets
confributed as capifal, inleres! dus to revaluation of monetary ibems, fnancial nstruments ane
atfed non-monetary ilems,

Dhvidends are recognized as & liability when approved by the General Meesting of Shareholders.
Basic samings per share

Basic sarmnings per share is calculated by dividing the profil afier tax attributable fo common
sharehalders of the Company by the weighted average number of comman shares outstanding
dunng the year

Ravariie
Goods sales

Sales revenue is recognized whan all the 5 following condibons are met.

{a) The Company has been ransferred significant risks and rewards associated with ownership
of the goods to buyers,

(b} The Company no longar retains management of goods as the owner or control of goods;

() The company is relatvaly relisbly identified. Whan & Contract stipulates (hal a buyer is entitled
io refurn products or goods as purchased under specific conditions, the entarprise can only
recosd the revenuse when those specific conditions no longer exisl and the buyer cannol
raturn products or goods. (except whsre (he cusiomer reserves ihe nght 1o return goods in
exchange for other goods or services),

{d} The company has obiained or shall obiain economic banefits from the sale; and

{8) Ideniify the costs related to the sals.

Revenue from provision of services

Service provision revenue is recorded when the fransaction results are determined reliably. In
case the service supply is related 1o several pariods, the revenus is recognized in the pariod in
accordanos with the resull of the work compleled on the preparation date of the Balance Shes|
of that peried. The outcome of a servica transaction is determingd when all four (4) conditions
are mal

{a) Revenus can be measurad relisbly. When a coniract stipulstes that the buyar has the nght o
refum purchased services under specilic condllions, the enterprise B only allowed to
recognee revenue when those speciiic condilions no longer exs! and (he buyer no longer
has the right to ratum the provided services,

(k) Have ablained or will obiein economic benefits fram the transaction of providing that ssmnce,

() Idaniidy ihe porton of work completed at the time of reaporting, and

{d) Datermine the cosis incurred for fhe lransaction and the costs 1o complete those sevvice
ransadiions.

Intarest

Interest s recognized on an aceruals basis, which |8 determined on the balance of the depasil
accounts and the aciual iIntenest rake in each period

3

: EL

-

=




DONG NAI BUILDIMG MATERLAL AND FUEL JOINT BTOCK COMPANY
Mo, 2558 Pham Van Thuan, Tan Mai Ward, Bien Hoa Cily, Dong Nal Province, Vietnam

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fioe the fiscal year ended Deoamber 319, 20624

This node is an integral pat o be raad i coruncion with Be attached financial stalemens.

497

4.8

418
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Dividends, profits divided

Dividand, profit divided is recognized whan (he Company ane entitled (o (eceive dividends or b
enfitied fo receive profils from the capital contribution, Dividends received in the form of shares
are anly tracked by (he ncrease in the number of shares, withow! recognizing ihe value of the
shares recened

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs include inerest and oiber cosls incured direcily in connection with the loans.

Barrowing costs are recognized in financial expanses in the year, axcept when barrowing oosts
direclly alfribulable to the consfruction or production of & qualifying assel are included in the cosl
of ihal azsal (capialized). Bormowng cosl capitalization cesses when (hie major activities required
io prepare unfinisher assels for use or sale have been completed,

Cumrent income tax
The corporale income tax sxpenss includes the curmen! corporate income tax.
Current income ax

Cument income tax is & iax calculated based on faxable income. Taxable income is different from
the accounting profil due 1o the adjusiment of lemporary differences between lax and acoounting,
mon-deductible expenses as well as adjustment of non-taxable incomes and moved losses

The Company's tax relumns will be audited by the tax authorities. Due o the applicafion of tax
lews 1o each lype of ransaction and thesr inlerpratation, undersianding and acceptance in many
diffrent ways, the figures n he inancial statements may difier from 1kose of the 1ax authorties,

Departmental Report

The business depariment is a part that can be separalely idantified 1o participate in 1he production
or supply of products or sarvices and has different risks and economic benefits than ofher
business divisions.

The departmeni by geographical area |s & distinguishable depariment lhal engages in the
produciion or supply of products or sarvices within a specilic economic environment but this
deparimeni has risks end economic benefits different from those in ofther eoconomic
arvirarnmens.

Related pariies

Parties are considered fo ba related if they are capable of controfling or significant influence over
iha olhed parly in making decisions aboul financial and operaling policies. Parlies are alzo
conskdérad to be related if they are subject to common control o genarally significant mfluence.
Thie loliowing mdividualslcompanies ame considared relalsd paries:

Individual/Company Location  Relationahip

Petrolimes Vietnam  Sharsholders holding 5% or
more of voling shares

Patec Trading and Investment Corporatian Yietnam Shaneholtders holding 5% or
more of voting shares

Cluang Minh Bus Stalion Joint Stock Company  Vielnam Shareholdars holding 5% or
more of voting shares

Rang Dong Food Company Limited Wiatnam Affiates

Long Thanh Joint Stock Trading Company Wiatnam  Affilates

Tay Mguyen Durlan Joini Stock Company Wielram Oiher capiial contribulion
imrestment

Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors, Board Kay members

af Managameani
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the fiscal year ended December 319, 2024

This nofe s an infegral part io be read in conjunoion witfh e affached financial stalemens.

& ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS IN THE BALANCE SHEET

BA Cash and eash equivalents
Doacomber 31, 2024 January 01, 2024

VMDD VNI
Cash -VND 12,683,715,534 3,746, 286,681
Bark deposs VND 4 926,718,913 16,218,291,915
Cash equivalents{") ___25,000,000,000 ——Y

42820435447 19,984,578 596 '

] Cash equivalents are 3-month term deposils held at the Joinl Stock Commercial Bank for |
Imvesiment and Developmenl of Vietnam with an inleresi rate of 3.4% per annum.

. \

621 Short-term financial investments
The Company'e shof-temm financeal investiments include investmanis hald o malurily, delailed

Investmant held to maturity dats |
December 31, 2024 January 01, 2024 | |
mm nnnnm Original cost Book Value .

VND WND

Shori=time

Termed deposits _268,300,000,000 258,300,000,000  294,170,000,000 Eﬂ?._ﬂ_ﬂﬂ_ﬂﬂﬁ ‘
25300000000 280.300,000000 204.170,000,000 264.170,000,000

Heald-to-matursty investments ara lerm deposils al commercial banks with @n inerest rate of 4.1% |

to 5.2% per annum. This term deposit has been pledged for the Company's loans (see hole 4
mumber 5.9 7). i
L
i

622 Long-term financial investmeant

The Company's lang-term financial mvestiments include mvasimonts in associated companies
and capital contributions to other entities, detailed as follows:

December 31, 2024 January 01, 2024
Original price  Provision  Fair Original price  Provision  Fair
value walua
VND YHD  VND WHD VND VHD

il i

lnivestmants In associales

Rang Dong Food Co,, 1,100,000, 000 - (*y  1,700,000.000 = i
Lid {a)

Long Thanh Joint Stock  50,213.488.778 ] () 48,813.222 598 + I
Trading Compay (b}

investing capital in other companies
Tay Nguyen Dutian Joint 10,000,000,000 {126,685, 794) (" 10,000,000,000 (436.500968) (%)
Stock Company (c)

g

s

§1,313,480,778 (126,685,794) 68,913,222,998 (426, 590,968)

(a) The investment i Rang Dong Food Co, Lid has a conirbuted capital value of WND
1,100,000,000, acoounting lor 44% of the company’s chaner capilal. Rang Dong Food Co,, Lid,
is & Emited lisbiity company with two or more members, operaling undes the Enterprise
Regisration Cenificats Mo 3600248537 initially issued on June 20, 1986, and amended for the
savanth fima on Odlober 4, 2024, The main activity of the affiiated company & oiher catering
SRIVICES, dails, proviason off catening sarvices.,
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DOMG NAL BUILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPAMNY
Mo, 2558 Pham Van Thuan, Tan Mai Ward, Ben Hoa Cily, Dong Mal Province, Vigtham

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
fior ihe fiscal year snded December 317, 2024

This pole is an infegral part to be read in conjunchion with the atfeched fnancial sfatemants

] mMmmmemmcmm.mhmwmd
WND 50,213,489, 778 comesponds to 662,358 shares, accounting Tor 33 36% of the company's
charer capital Long Thanh Trading Joini Stock Company 8 @ joint siock company operaiing
under e Enterprise Registration Cerificale No. 3600445359, nitially ssusd on January 19,
2000, and amendad for the seventh time on July 17, 2020 The principal activities of this company
are trading in fuel, food lechnology, elecirical appliances, and commercial services.

Significant ransaciions with assocated companies are presented 0 section 9.1 2

e} Investment n Tay Mguyen Durian Joini Stock Company with @ contribuled capital vakse of VHD
10,000,000,000 correspending to 1,000,000 shares, sccounting for 10.35% of the charler capital
of this Company. Tay Mguyen Dunan Joinl Stock Company is & joint stock company operaling
under the Enterprise Regisiration Cedificate Mo, 5001384460, initially issusd on October T, 2013,
and amanded Tar the ninth ime on December B, 2023. The primary activities of the company
include processing various types of fruits, consirucling and developing ndusinal clustars, and
cultneating fruit trees according 1o high-tech standards.

it MnlenhrﬂtIﬂl,mﬂMmLMﬂ.ﬁMﬂmmhhm
companies and iméestmends in other entiies & recorded al cosl. The compeny has nol yel
delarmined the f&ir valve of hesa inestments to disclose in the financial statements because
there are no quoted prices on the market and the Vielnamese Accounting Standards and the
Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting Regime curmently do not have guidslines on how Io calculate
fait valug using valuation echniques. The fair value of this invesiment may differ from its book
valug.

53 Short-torm regelvables fram customers
Decamiar 31, 2024 Jdanuary 01, 2024
WND YD

Nghi Son Cemanl Corporation 17,348,112,555 25,950,235,528
Lizan Joint Stock Compay 14,444 025 920 £679 424 930 ‘
Viet Khanh An Petroleum Transporiation Joint Stock  5.382.506.709 144,285 790
Company ]
CJ Cau Tre Foods Joint Stock Company - Long An 4,178,680 086 4,960 902 619 }
Biranch
Branch of Vicem Ha Tien Cement Joint Stock 3,123,708,216 32,698 429 "
Company L
Hai Au Phat Company Limited 1,218 680,003 1,218,660,003 l
Deo Ca Group Joint Stock Company 152,376,000 4,892 134,000
Dther customers 53,424 026,674 47,165,895 581

_99,273,024,183 _ 1,764,206,880

The company has pledged its debt claims for Ihe loans (see Nole 5.17).
B4  Shot-tom, long-term advance payment to the seller

64.1 Short-tarm repayments to suppliers
Decambar 31, 2024 January 01, 2024
YND YD

Advanca paymant to other vendors

atram Ol Joint Stock Campany (%) 37,581,800, 000 37,861 800,000
Hung Hau Petroteurn Company Limited 5,011,115,000 5020414937
Other suppliers 5,862 601,803 1,762 548 821

A8 BE6 616,803 44,764,763,768

™ This @ an advance payment to Vietnam Oil Joit Stock Company, which = cumently baing
for repaymaent by Ms. Mai Thi Kigoe Trinh Whrough ihe transter of land use rigns and
assats aliached 1o the land as per the Commitment daled November 3, 2022, As of the dats of

24

e e i



DONG MAI BUILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Ma, 2558 Phiam Van Thuan, Tan Mai Ward, Bien Hoa Cily, Dong Mai Frovince, Vietnam

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the fiscal year endad December 319, 2024

This nate 5 an wlegral part [0 be read i confencion with e sifached fnancial slatemeants

this financial statemant, the Comparny has not yal complated the procedures for the ransfer of |
land use rights and aliached assets mentioned abowe, therelore the advance paymeant o lhe

seller of Viel Gil Joini Stock Company has not yet bean offsel

54.2 Long-term prepaymernts to suppliers
Decsmbar 31, 2024 Jamuary 01, 2024
WD WND
Advance payment to other vendors
Cuy Nhu Ngoc One-Member Limited Liability 3,207,296,000 1,394,448,000 |
3207296000 ___ 1,394,448,000
55 Other recelvables
651 Other short-term recaeivables
December 31, 2024 January 01, 2024
Value  Provision Value Provision
VND VMND YND VND
Recoivables from other organizations and .
irdividuals |
Recewables from share transfer - 1,389 780,000
actuisifion '
Expacted intevest income from 7258372320 - 6,390,980, 823 -
lerm deposils
Parsonal incomes Lax arearns 30 965,279 - 43514279 s
Viet - Nhat Automaobile Trading 2,354 545 464 - 2,354 545 464 %
Company Limited (*)
Gas oylinders receivables 317,800,000 = 387,820,000 - i
Advance paymeni for employees 158,000,000 - 250,499 956 -
Dher short-term receives 309,360,900 - 5311850 -
10,198,043,881 - 108223623712 2~ - i
i
() This is the receivable related to the leasing fees from Viet - Mhal Automobile Trading Company ™
Limited a3 per lease contract number 15VLCE-TN daled Decembar 26, 2014 As of Decembar i
31, 2024, the Company has nof yet issusd an invoice for ihis rental payment. .
652  Other long-term recaivables ’
Decambaer 31, 2024 January 01, 2024
Value  Provision Valus Proevision 4
WYHD VND VND VMND
Receivables from other arganizations ]
and individuals !
Pledge, morigage, escrow, deposit __ 628,880,000 - 728,890,000 - |
923,890,000 - 728,850,000 E
5.6 Bad dabt
____December 31, 2024 - January 01, 2024
Original price Value can ba Provision Historical Value can be Provision
recovenad cost  recoverad ,
WHD WND WD WD WHD YHD ;
Recelvables from sustomoers o
Marn Thinh Phat Joinl 470,919,993 - (470,919.983) 470,910,093 - (470,919,993)
Stock Company
25




DONG MAJ BUILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo, 2558 Pham Van Thuan, Tan Mai Ward, Bien Hoa Cily, Dong Mal Province, Vietnam

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Tor the fscal year ended December 31", 2024

This nodle is an irfegval part lo be read in confinction with the attached Mhancis slaaments.

Decembar 31, 2024 ___ danuary 01, 2024
Oviginal price Valus can be Frovision Historical Valus can be Provision
recoverad cost  mecoversd
WND WD YND YND YND YND

211 Trading Service 244,850,000 - (244 950,000) 244,950,000 = (244 560,000}
Company Limited
Mguyen Hoa Binh 318 858 900 - [318,868.9000 318,868,500 - (318,868 000
Company Limited
Hgoc Tan Thanh 204 385 800 - (204 385,800) 204,365 800 - {204 365, B00)
Compary Limited
Thanh Duc Transport 150,526 450 {150 526 460) 150 526,460 - (150,526 460)
Company Limited
Tri Minh Phat 159,668,060 - (158,5688,050) 150,868 050 - (158,668,060)
Company Limiled
Van Anh Transpor 402,140,000 - (402,140,000p 402 140,000 = (402,140, 000)
Impan-Export Trading
Sarvice Ona Member
Lirnitesd Liabiy
Company
mmcmmnr 1,218 680,003 - {1,218,680,003) 1,216.680,003 365,604,007 (B53,07TE,002)
Lagom Trading Joie 523622120 157086636 (366535484) 623622120 261.811.060 (261.811,060)
Stock Company - Soc
Trang Branch
‘inh Phat Transpor B47 200,000 346,770,000 (500.430,000) B47,200000 516,210,000 (330,890,000)
Fusl Company Limiled -
Oihar CLestomers 2 826,911,633 611,876,548 (2,215,025,085) 2,497,082 681 TO4 289 482 (1,532,783,189)
Shortage of assels awaiting
resalution
Embezzied debts - (3,913,807, 784)

3913807794 - {3913,807,794) 3.913507,794
11,261,660,763 1,116,733,184_(10,168.827,568)

57  Shortage of assets swaiting resolution

Embezzieman Liabiliies (%)

[y Thiz rerceivable amount embazzhed

T

Docamber 31, 2024 January 01, 2024
VD WD

393,807,784
3,81

3,807,784

3,913,807 704
BOT, 794

by Mr. Mguyan Xuan Toan was discovered in Movember 2019,

According to Judgmen! Mo, ON2022/HS-5T daled January 13, 2022, of the People's Court of
Dang Nai Province, the amaunt Mr, Nguyen Xuan Toan must compensate fhe
3,813,807, 754, The company has made a provision for doubliul debis ai a rate of 100% for this
receivable accounl.

is WD

68  Inventory
December 31, 2024 January 01, 2024

Value  Provision Value Provision
WND WHD WD VHD
Tools and supplies 382,610,845 - 3730682 920 -
Merchandises 174,.688,876,071 - 162,620,365 542 -
Goods sent for sale 37,423,087 : LA ;
178,1 - 162,994,348 483 .

The Company's goods are morigaged for the Company’s loans (see Nole 5.17).
28
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DONG MAI BUILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
MNo. 2558 Pham Van Thuan, Tan Mal Ward, Bien Moa City, Dong Nai Province, Vielnam

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the fscal year anded December 31, 2024

This nate (s an iregral part fo be read in canjumction wilh e atteehed fnencial slatemenis

59  Short-term/ long-term prepaid expenses

58.1 Shon-term prepald exponsss
Decombar 31, 2024 January 01, 2024
AVND WM

Repair and maintenance cosis 14,084,835 195,979,012
IRSUrancs BxpEnses 61,6082 629 66,273,037
Consullancy axpenses 131,666 667 .
Cither ehort-lemm prepad sxpenses 149 bag 437 146 T84 553

367,693,668 408,046,602

Decombaer 31, 2024 Jamuary 01, 2024
WND

WND
Repair, renovabion, and office equipment costs 480,825,777 212,417 871
Cosl of instafling store equipmeant 1,061,056 485 1,210.918,543
Oither kong-term prepaid expenses 618,067 146 440,386 313

_ 2,159,949,408 1,863,723,827
610 SHuation of increass or doorease of tangible fixed assets

Houses, Machines, Maans of Eguipment, Total
abjects -
WMD) VHD WND YND WD
HISTORICAL COST
s of January 01, 2024 17,777,574,062 10,280 495,933 5841, 757 246 183,000,000 34,081,067 241
Purchase in ihe year 45,000,000 1,348 200,000 ‘21!.!,“,“ 77,502,503 3,655,8082593
Redusction dus io {548 530 688) (230,297 200) - (¥7B.B27 B88)

As of Docomber 31,  17,274,043,374 11,408,398,733 8,026,697,246 260,692,503 36,968,731,946
2024

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

As of January D1, 2024 14,652 380,124 7,327,119,100 3980,788,825 60,035 068 26,040,323 117
Depreciation in the year 982,010,159  BB0641081 655806321 45712087 2574258 658
Reduction due fo {548,530,688) (230,297 200) - - (778,827 888)

liquidation [N 'S
As of Docember 31,  16,086,860,685 7,977,462,981 4,636,684,146 125,747,165 27,835,753 887
024

REMAINING VALUE \
As of January 01, 2024 3,125193938 2062376833 1861008421 102,864,832 B,061,544,124
ot December 31. . 475 183,778 3,430,936,762 3,366,013,900 134,845,428 9,132,878,069

The original cost of fixed asseis thal have boen fully depreciated bul are still n use as of
Decembar 31, 2024 s YND 19,825,088, 151 (as of January 1, 2024, i & VHD 19,332 847 844).

The remaining value of fixed assets pledged for the Company’s loan as of Decamber 31, 2024,
Is VIMD 1.422.514,008 (s of January 1, 2024, it was YND 1,969,108,955) (see note 5.17).
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DONG MAI BUILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo, 2558 Pham Van Thuan, Tan Mai Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, Vielnam

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for tha fiscal year ended Decembar 319 2024

This node is an infegral part (o be read in conjenction with he stached fnancial stalements

&1

612

613

Situation of inerease or decreases of tangible fixed assets

Land use rights Software Total
Computer

VND WND VND
HISTORICAL COST
Al January 01, 2024 12,360 391,200 207286384  12,677,677,564
At December 31, 2024 _12,380,391,200 297,286,384 12.677,677.564
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
A Janwary 01, 2024 1,138 913038 270,842,783 1,400,756 818
Depreciation in the year _ BADOSBE4 26442581 110452445
At December 31, 2024 1222922899 297,286,364 1,620,209, 283
REMAINING VALUE
Al January 01, 2024 11,241,478, 185 26,442 581 11,267 920,746
At December 31, 2024 11,167 468,301 - 11,167 488,301

Az ol December 31, 2024, the residual valus of the Land Usa Rights usad as collataral far losns
is WND 3,885,104 665 (as of January 1, 2024, it was VND 3,968,114 529) (see explanation 517}

Current payables to suppliers
December 31, 2024 January 01, 2024
Valus Repayable Value Rupayable
VND VHD YND VYND
Payables to other suppliers
Wietnam Fuel Equipment 1.143.558.000  1,143,5508,000 z
Cao., L
Trieu Oue Thuong Cinh 227 460 428 297 460 428
Masmfacturing and Trading
Ca., Lid
Sai Gon Petrolimex Gas 99,516,120 99,516,120 283,128 968 283,129,968
Limiled
Vied Khanh An Petroleum 1.016,587,000 1,015,597 000
Trensparation Joinl Stock
Company
Other suppliers 604582200 604582200 740670790 740,679,790
2,165,116,767  2,166,116,767 2,040,408,768 2,040,406,768

Bhort-term advances from customers

Prepayments from other customens

Heng Thoa Manufachsring and Trading Co., L.
Sang Da Dong Nai Petroleum Cormpany Limited
Hong Xuan Hoang Pelroleum Privale Enlerprise

Quynh Mai Petro One Member Company Limited

Oither cusiomers

Decamber 31, January 01, 2024

2024
WND WND
3,589,710,000 18,020,000
385 GB0,000 .
280,440,000 426,800,000
- 2 583 460,000
1,027,046 607 650,178,008
5,292 876,607 3,788,458,008

614  Taxes and amounts (receivableVpayable to the State

.
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DOMG HAI BUILDING MATERIAL AND FLIEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo, 2558 Phan Van Thusn, Tan Mai Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, Vialnam

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the fiscal year ended December 31%, 2024

This note is an infegral pard o be read m conjeneion with e atfached financial siakemeants.

January 01, Dwaember 31,
2024 Arisen during the year 2024
Payables Payables Paid amounts Transfer Payables

deductian
WHD WND WND WHD YMD
Domestic VAT - MVIETOBI0ME  (B356ETH2S) (340035122084 -
Corporate income tax ZMGETED 4 134BI3TT0 (1,850,000,000) & 2,581 231 380
Parsonal income tax M B3 82T 50449513 (355940833 . 3B, 143,507
Land tax, land rental - 2088727371 (2088727373 s ;
Licernse Lax - 5000000 (16,000,000 = -
Taxes and athar 5,000,000 20103842  (30,103.5942) - 4,000,000
__T16261 447 348,208 TOASNT7 (B176489.073) (340.835122.084)  2,603,374,887

Value added fax

516

The company pays value added jax

domastio consumpticn goods and services are 5%, 8%, and 10%.

Corporale inpome fax

Corporate income tax ("CIT) payable in the year is cajculated as follows

profil to determine iexable corporate invcome fax
profit:

Increasing adjusied

Taxable incomes

Incame wilh ey sxemplion

Taxable income

CIT rale

Payable CIT
Adjustment of Corporate Income Tax for
Previous Years

Exponse from current Corporate incoma tax

by deduction method. The value-added iax mles for

Year of 2024 Year of 2023
VND VMO
20,277,692,782 9,279,612.852
754,848 365 8,364,918,243

F3 WM 1?;4.::1,“:
m,ﬁ'lhﬂ 17.048,911,095
20% 20%
4,007,781,029 3,408,782,219
126,832,741 421,918 558
4,134,613,770 3,831,698,778

The company is obliged (o pay corporale imcome tax al the rale of 20% of taxabbe income.

Other taxes

The company declares and submits according 1o regulations.

Shaort-term accrusd expanses

Liabilities 1o other organizations and
individuals

Interes] axpenses

Dvcict the 13th-month salary
Transporaton cos!

Othar axpanses

December 31, 2024

WND

358 253,023
1,229,778,390
858,974,731
223,949 826

= ﬁrln--.-- 'ITE

Jarvuary 01,

638,691,704
T2 552
133,653,676

B5.277,778
_ 1,455,544.690
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DONG NAI BUILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Ha. 2558 Pham Yan Thuan, Tan Mal Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Mal Provinos, Vietnam

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the fiscal year ended Decamber 319 2024

This note is an infegral part fo be read in conjunction with ihe aifached fnancial sialoments

E18  Other short-tarm and long-term payables

5.16.1 Other shori-tsrm payables
December 31, 2024 January 01, 2024
VHD

Linbilities to other organizations and
mﬁ#ﬂ” reaoiution 114,540,349 114,540,348
& of assels swailing ; B0,

Union funds 28,616,000 48,198,000
Gas oylinders payablas 500,740,000 BE4, 440,000
Ground rental payables - Viel - Nhat Automobse 2.278,181,828 2.278,181 828
Trading Company Limited

Other short-term payables 8127740 49, 1,-1_&

3,003,348,017 3,152,484,777

B.16.2 Other long-term payables
Deammber 31, 2024 January 01, 2024
VD WD

Liabilities to other organizations and
Individuals
Receipt of depusils esciows ﬁ.iﬁﬂ.ﬁﬂﬁ.ﬂg 4,583 566,667
__ 663568667 _ 4,693,566,667
517  Short-term and long-term financlal borrowing and debi leasing
EAT.1 Shori-term borfowings and finance lease liabHities

December 31, 2024 January 01, 2024
Value Repayable Value Repayakla
WHD WD VD WD
Shori-term borrowings and finance lease Nabilities to otfer organizations and individuals
Vietnam Joint Stock 26,678, 508,380 26678,508 380 21145420000 21,145 430,000

Commerciad Bank for Industry

and Trada — Daong MNai

Branch

Juint Stock Commercial Bank 140,420 527 D04 140,429,527 004 152,740,764 820 152,740,784 890

for Foreign Trade of Vietnam

= Deng Nai Branch ()

Bank for investmeant and 184 160,371,140 184 180,371,140 196,457 984 810 108 457 064 810
of Viatnam JSG

- Nam Dong Nai Branch (c)

Shinban Vietsam Limited 47 G765 820,700 4T 578 820,700 69002086320 69002966320

mthljr Bank - Phu My Hung

Agribank - Vieinam Bank for  24,301,883,770 24,301 883,770 24,726,000,000  24,725,000,000
and Rural

Development - Tam Phuoe

Dong Nai Branch (&)

Military Commencial Joim 78,086 807 818 78036807918 49625000000 49,625 000 000
Slock Bank — Dong Mai

Branch

Mr_ Nguyen Chi Anh . 1um.nuumu mnunmm
Long-lesm loans due _ 3DS, 1ﬂm 305,159,586

511,589,288,909 511,689,288,909 E._.J'_'IEI 525,697.166.020

{a) Thes Is a shorl-lerm loan from Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank foe Industry and Trade -
Dong Mai Branch under fhe cradil limil contract numiber 300039854/2024-HEC YHMNHCTESE0-
CHATDOT dated August 1, 2024, The lean limit s YHD 55,000,000,000. The laan term is from

ao




CIOMNG KA BUILDING MATERIAL AMD FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo, 2558 Pham Van Thuan, Tan Mai Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, \iatnam

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the fiscal year ended December 31%_ 2024

This noba is an imegra pe 10 be fead in conuncian wil ihe aitached fnancial stafements.

{6

August 1, 2024, to Aogust 1, 2025. The purpose of the loan i 1o supplement working capital to
suppon (he business operations of petroleum trading. Interest on loans scoording io each debl
recognition agresment, The loan is secured by the following collaleral asseds:

«  Theland use rights and assals altached 1o the land al Phu Bnh Commune, Tan Piu District,
Dong Na Province, plod number 8, map shest number 5 wilh & secured valos of YND
14_166,000,000 sccording (o the real estate morgage contract number (11-13 62 9584/HETC
dated Augusi 14, 2013

- The enlire goods consist of fued oil, lbricating o, greese, gas, and other iems.., with a
soecured value of VND 32 000 000,000 according 1o the goods morignage contract numbser
14.62 300039854HBTC-CE dated September 18, 2014

- The rght to claim a debt with & secured valee of WYND 77 800,000 000 according o the
morigage contracl ol peoperdy rghls Mo DU201HBBEVNHCTERO-CHATDOT dated
Decamber 30, 2019,

= The land use nghts and assels attached to the land of Long Phuoc Peirol filling station, Mu)
Lir Petrail Nlling stalion, Trang Bom Peiral filing station, Petrol filing stalion Mo. 2, and the
Company's offica with a guaranteed value of VHD 448 000,000 accarding to the real estale
marigage contract Mo, 300038854 2020HEBEVNHCTEA0-CHATDOT-BES dated Decamber
1, 2020

- Machinery, equipmeni, and transporiaton wehicles with 8 guaranieed value of VND
3.862.000,000 sccording lo the moveble properly morigage contracl number
A0003ISA54 2020/HEBENHCTEA0-CHATODOT dated December 1, 2020

- Deposil contract numbar BE02022/1 3048 and the supplementary amendment document for
the term deposil contract number GBOROZZAIMEPLT with a nominal value of VND
7.500,000,000, an interesl rate of 4.2% par annum, with & term of 12 months from May 5,
2024, Iv May 5, 2025 according lo the pledge confract for valuable papers numiber
01. 300038854202 2/HEBEMHC TEB0-HOTG 7.5TY dated May 5, 2022,

This is a shori-lerm loan from the Joini Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade of Vietnam -
Dong Mai Branch, pursuant to Credit Granting Contract Mo, 2024116MHOTO/OLN dated
November 11, 2024, and Loan Confracts under Limit No. 2024116A/HDHM/OLN and Mo.
20241 16BHOHM/OLN dated November 11, 2024 The lean limit is VND 170,000,000.000. The
loan Emil maintenance perod is 12 manths from the contrac! signing date. The purpose of the
loan is o suppor the activiies of petroleum production and business. Loan interest rate
sccording o each debt acknowtedgment contract. The loan is secured by the following coliatoral
WSS

- The land use rights and assels attached to the land of plot number 828, map shesl numbes
17, and plot number 58 map shesl number 17 in Xuan Thanh Commune, Thong Nhat
Districl, Dong Mai Province with & secured value of WND 4,906, 151,000 according o the
morgaga contract for land use nghts number 2019050HBBEVOLN dated June 26, 2018,
and the asset valuation minules dated November 11, 2024

< The land wse rights of plot number 3, map shieet number 30, located in Hung Loc Commune,
Thong Nhai District, Dong Nal Province, with & secured value of VND 10,195 219 000
sccording to the morgage contract numbar 20120230/HBBEVSMEMHNT daled Seplember
10, 2012, and the assel valuation reporl dated November 11, 2024,

- Goods in croulation dunng e production and business process, such as gasobing, o,
grense, and gas, with 8 secured value of VND 70,000,000,000 under the goods morigage
coniract number 2020090MBBETILN dated July 28, 2020, the amended and supplamanted
contract iumber 2020090/HBBEMILN-02 dated July 07, 2022, and the assol valuation repon
dated Movember 11, 2024,
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DOMNG MAT BUILDING MATERIAL AND FLEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo 2558 Pham Yan Thuan, Tan Mai Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nal Province, Vielnam

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for ihe fiscal year ended Decambar 317, 2024

This nofe is &n integral part fo be read in comnjunction with e atfachied ingnetal statements

id)

(=

- The property rights arising fram the sales conlracls of goods with the secured assel valus of
mmmﬁmhmmmmu,mmnmhmmﬂ
peopery Tights arising from coniract number 2020081/HEBEVGLN dated July 28, 2020, the
amendment and supplement contract numbser 2020061/ HDBEVOLN-02 dated July 7, 2022,
and Ihe assal valuation minutes daled November 11, 2024,

- Deposils at \Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Forsign Trade with a 12-monih term

and |nterest rates ranging from 4.1% 1o 4.2% per annum, according o the comesponding
deposil pledge confracts, with a lotal face value of VND 74,000,000,000

This Is @ short-term boan from the Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Investment and Development
of Vietnam - Nam Dong Nai Branch according 1o The credit limit is VND 200,000,000,000. The
tarm for maintaining the credit imit is 12 months from the date of contract signing. The purpose

of the loan is 1o supplement warking capital, provide guarentees, and open lstlers of credil, Loan
wiberest rale according 1o each debl acknowledgmeant oonlfact

. The right to claim debl with & secured value of VND 90,811,915, 455 according to the Debt
Wmm.wmmmmm.wh
yaluation report daled November 7, 2024

. (Goods ciroulaled during the production and business process such as gasoline, oil, grease,
and gas, with a guaranieed value of VND 181,905,226,154 according to the masiar assel
mmwmﬂm dated Movember 10, 2023, and the

« The loan is secured by deposits al the Joinl Stock Commerncial Bank for Investment and
K of Vietnam with terms ranging from 3 to 12 monthe and nterest rates from

Developmeant
3.4% fo 4. 7% per annum, according to the respective deposit pledge agreaments, with a tolal
face value of VND 120,000,000,000.

This s & shor-term loan from Shinhan Bank Vietnam Co., Lid - Phu My Hung Branch. in
aecordance with Credit Agreement Mo SHEPMHMOTD/Z023/CO18 dated June 22, 2073,
Amendment Appendix No. 1 dated Seplember 5 2023, and the Extension - Amandment,

to Credit Agreement No. 02 deted June 22, 2024 The loan fimil s VND
48,000,000,000. The loan limil maintenance period is 12 months from the contract signing date.
The purpose of the loan is 1o supplement working capital. Loan interest rate according to each
dehl acknowladgmenl conlract

The loan is secured by deposil accounts at Shinhan Bank Vietnam Co , Lid with a 12-manih
tarm and an inlerest rate ranging from 4.2% io 4.68% por annum, sccording lo the respective
deposil pledge agreaments, with a total nominal value of VND 28,800, 000,000,

This is & short-term loan from the Vietnam Bank for Agrculiure and Rural Development - Tam
Phuoc Dong Mal Branch under Credii Contract No. 5903-LAV-202400350 dated October 30,
2024, The loan limit is YND 25,000,000,000 The loan limil mantenance period is 12 months
from the contract signing date. The purpose of the loan is to supplement working capilal, provide
guarantoes, and open letiers of ciedil. Loan interest rate acconding o each debt acknowledgment
confract

The loan i& secured by deposits at the Vietnam Bank for Agricultiure and Rural Development -
Tam Phioc Dong Nai Branch with a term of 12 months and an interest rate starting from 4.2%

per annum, acoording 1o the cormesponding deposil pledge agresmants with @ tolal face value of
YHD 13,000,000.000,

This is @ shor-term loan from Military Commercial Jeint Stock Bank — Dong Nas Branch under
Cradi Agresment No. 25732424 720 30366329 TD dated Novamber 18, 2024, The loan kmil |s
WD 170,000, 000,000, The term for maintaining ihe |oan kmit is from Ihe conlract signing date
until October 25, 2025 The purpose of the loan is lo supplemenl working capdal, provide
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DONG MAI BUILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo, 2558 Pham Vian Thuan, Tan Mai Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nal Province, Vietnam

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the fiscal year ended December 319, 2024

This note i5 an infegral part bo be read i conjunchion with he stached Anancial statemsnis

guarantess, and opan letters of credil. Loan interest rate according ta each debl acknowledgment
contract.

The loan is secured by deposits al Miltary Commercal Joini Stcck Bank — Dong Nai Branch with
& term of 12 months and an interesi rate ranging from 4, 8% 1o 5.2% per annum, according to the
mew.m-wmmmmm.m.m,m.

Details of shorl-term lpans and finance lease liabildies incurmed during the year are as follows:

January 01, Arising loan Transfer Loan amount paid  December 31,
024 amount Inthe  frem long i the year 2024
year  berm loan
and debts
WND VND YHD WND
Short-1erm 515,607 166,020 2 861,043.063.184 - (2 B6B 356, 140,291) 511,284 088,913
basnk loans
Ciivar Shori- 10,000,000,000  52,700,000,000 - (62,700,000, 000}
term Persanal
Loans
Lomng-tarm = - 305,100,996 - 305, 188 986
loans due

§26,097,166,020 2.914,643,063,104 305,199,996 (2,929,066,140,291) 511,689,208,909

5172 Long-em borrowings and finance lease labilities
Decombor 31, 2024 January 01, 2024

Valuse  Repayable
WD WD

Long-term borrowings and finance lease liabilitles fo other organizations and individuals

Shinhan Bank Vietnam Co,,  1,398,833.335  1,398,833,335 . .
Lid - Phu My Hung Branch (g)
Long-term loans due (305,199,996)  (305,199,996) = E

s

1.H‘il.m —!lﬂl'—“.nm s

) mmmmmmmm..m-mwmmmmum

Contract No. SHEPMH/HDTINZ024/C082 dated July 22, 2024 forthe

of automobiles to

senve the oparation and commuling needs of the enterprize. The loan limit is YND 1,526,000, 000
Loan term: B0 months. The fixed interest rate is 7.6% per annum applicable for the first 12
maonths, after which the interest rate is adjusted monthly according to the bank's announcement
The koan is secured by the assel of a Ford vahicle with license plale number S0K-484 61,
with & collsteral value of YND 2,089,000,000, sccording to the Morgage Coniract Mo
SHEPMHMHOTC/2024/C052 dated July 22, 2024

Detaile of |ong-term |sans ansEng are &s follows:

e e e e Fram S

Arising loan  Transfer to current  Loan amount Decamber

Jamuary
01, 2024 amount in the

loans and debt  paid in the 31, 2024
yoar yoar

VND VND VD VND VND

Long-term bank loan - 1,526,000,000 (305,196,906)  (127,166,665) 1,003,533,339

- 1,526,000,000 (3086,199,996)  (127,166,885) 1,093,633,339

a
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DONG MAI BUILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo 2550 Pham Van Thuan, Tan bMai Ward, Been Hoa City, Dong Nai Frovince, Vielnam

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the fiscal year anded December 317, 2024

This nive is an infegral pat io be ead in conjuaction will te afached faanci Stfements.

618 Bonus and weltare

Inorease dus to
.Ilmur m, Other  Decembar 31,
provisiond mﬂpt 4 2004
YND ‘u"HD YD WD
Reward fund 55,588,015 E - 85988015
Yielfare fund 18,823 407 - - 19,923 407
Company's Executive 36,117,142 - - 738,117,142
Manasgament Bomis
Fund
842,029,564 . . 842,029,684
619 Owner's Eguity
5.19.1 Changes in owner's eguity
Capital Share  Development  Undistributed Tatal
eontributed by pramium & investmeont esarmings
the owner funa
VND WMD YHND YND WD
As of January 01, 41,596,000,000 20,554 900,000 12323508766 83,066661334 158,481,150, 100
2023
Increase capital 116,884 630,000 (0548000000 (12323508 768)  (B3.8966131204) E
in the year
Prafil Tor the - - - 5,447 .914,074 G447 814,074
year
Extract from the - - (463,098, 385) {463, 098, 385)
Company's
Executive
Managemeani
Bomus Fund
Feimbursement - * * 463,098,385 463,088,385
of the Exscutive
Maragemen
Commities's
Reweard Fund
As of December 168 480,630,000 - - BB A3 ITH4  163,929,084,174
n, 2023
Ag of January 01, 158,480,630,000 - - BAMD4341T4  183,829.084.174
2024
Profil for the - = 18142879012 16,142 578,012
year
:'; ';g‘:""" 168,480,630,000 . - 21591413,186  180,072,043,186
5.19.2 Details of the capital contribution of the ocwner
to The amemded Enierprise Regisiration Cedificale, the charer capital of ihe Comparny
is WHD 158, 480,630,000, As of December 31, 2024, the charter capital has been fully contributed
by the shareholders as follows:
December 31, 2024 danuary 01, 2024
Mumber of Value of Ratio Mumbar af Value of Ratio
sharas shares shares shares
VHD ] WM %
Cuang Ninh Bus Station Joinl 5,562,734 55,627 340,000 3510 - -
Stock Company
Hoang Thi Thanh Hang 3517 400 35174000000 2219 3517400 35174000000 2218
Lun Cong Quang 1,490 657 14,808 570,000 941 1,490,657 14008570,000 041
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DOMG MA| BUILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPARY
Mo. 2658 Pham \an Thuan, Tan Mal Ward, Bien Haa City, Dong Nal Province, Vielnam
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fiow the fiscal year ended December 319 2024
This male is an integral part o be read in councion wilh e stached fnancial slalsmens.
Patrolmes 1310221 13102.210000 827 1,310,221 13102210000 827
Petec Trading and Imestment TE2 481 T 824810000 500 ToZ 481 TE24 890000 500
Comporation
u Thu Trang - 974,828 9748280000 616
Ciiner shareholders SIHSTD snuruunm 7,762 478 77624 760,000 4508
—SAAAO6 b 0L 84000 90608 16,848,063 1% 100.00
6.18.3 Stook
Decembor 31, 2024 Januwary 01, 2024
Stock Stock
Mumiber of shares 1o be registensd o ssus 15,848,063 15,848,063
Mumber of sold-io-public sharas 145,848,063 15,848 063
Common shares 16,848 063 15 848 063
Preferred shares kS 5
Mumber of shares redeamead . -
Corrmran shaes . 4
Freferrad shares = -
Mumibar of culstanding shares 16,848 D63 15,848,063
Comwmon shares 15, 848,063 15,848 063
FPrafermed shares a -
Farvalue of oulstanding shares: WND 10,000/share,
520 Off-balance shoot ilems
Outsourced proparty
The total minenum ease payiments in he fulure for non-cancellable operating lesse agresments
of asgets are as follows:
Decamber 31, 2024 January 01, 2024
YHND VND
L]
From 1 year or less 1,820,396 421 1,448 D54, 141 i
Char 1 year o 5 years 6,671,685 687 5,573,104.570 ¥
Ower 5 years 256565335733 _ 22074,189,074
34067417841 _ 29,096,367.785 :
£l
[
[ ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS IN REPORT ON BUSINESS RESULTS ;
61  Revenues from sales and sarvices
€.1.1 Neisales ﬁ
Yoar of 2024 Year of 2023 -
VND VND !
1
Sales of goods 3418437 624,102 3,515,624,455,603
Revenus from provision of services 1,571,407 414 1,462,062 399
1,420,009,031,518 1,517 ,086,518,002
Fevenue deduchons:
- Discounl sales ) . (11 874 385)
Nat sales. 3420009031618 _3,517,074,643,637




DONG NAI BUILLHNG MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
No. 2558 Pham Van Thuan, Tan Mai Ward, Bien Hea City, Dong Nai Province, Vietnam

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the fiscal year anded December 319, 2024

This nede (5 an integral part o be read i conjumcion with fhe attacihed finanoial SAMMMENTS,

812 Revenus from sales of goods and provision of services to related parties

Rang Dong Food Company Limited
Tay Nguyen Durlan Joint Stock Company
6.2 Cost of goods

Cost of goods sald

a3 Revenue from financial activities

mﬂnfhlrtdlpwh
Dividends divided

Interest expenses
Provision for investment i other entities

a8 General and administration expenses

Expenses for managemant siafl
Expenses for management malariais

Yoar of 2024 Year of 2023
WHND YHND

. 44,009,774

7 546,626 1,831,054
7148626 45,830,828
Yaar of 2024 Year of 2023
WND YD
3,343,780.961,161 3,444,416 802 573
3,343,780,081,161 _ 3.444,416,802,573
Year of 2024 Yaoar of 2023
VHD VND

12,728,269 408 11,235.798,727
28,355, 164 2,078,767, 122
993,537,000 __585,620,000

13,750,162,662 10,186

Year of 2024 Year of 2023
VND WND

25,252 982,874 29,365 263 246
R 174) 436,580,968
077,700 28,801,864,214

Yaar of 2024 Year of 2023

VND VND

18,062,271 811 17 564 568 198
84,877,005 188,477,300
381,634 8O0 626 688 47T
738,539,084 1,059,983,124
827,285,218 287 487 969
532,793,838 596,848,832
521,805,081 1,201,624 615

4 76 4,354, 386,025
BT __ 26,300,037,660

Yoar of 2024 Yaar of 2023
VND WHND

B 554, 550 948 8,109,824 D85

563 816,861 F03,440,280
190,379,548 354 518,070
1,864,691,379 1,743,803 262

gl "




DOMG NAI BLILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo. 2558 Pham Van Thuan, Tan Mai Ward, Ben Hoa City, Dang Mai Provinos, Vietnam

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the fiscal year ended December 31%, 2024

This node is an integral part o be mead in conjunclion with he afached financlal stalmnons

Taxes, charges and loos

Cosl / (Reversal) comtingency

Diffica slsckicily expensaes

Guesl cosl

Oihr corporale managemenl expensas

&7 Others incoms

Income from electricily and waler foes & renkal
kinsks

Liguidation of fixed assets
Vlume discount
O (RGoMme

6.8  Other axponses

Famumaralan of e Board of Directors and the
Board of Supervisors who are not directly
iryalived i management

Costs of elecricity and waler in rental kiosks
Oither expanses

8.8 Basic samings per share

2,122,734 541 2,152,142,710
1,323,830,31 2,515,647, 154
175,061 984 178,930,782
1,055 456,662 757,131,708
4,721,082,071 5,029,612 244
706 21,536,869,276

Year of 2024 Year of 2023
VND VND

173,650 847 214,716,884
52727212 &
146,023 508 361 88T 301
_ 5B 966204 508 686,134
431,376,721 s
Year of 2024 Year of 2023
VND VND
519,750,000 348,000,000
90,721,048 214,199,001
148 363,757 340

766,365,348 926,968,341

The calculalion of basic eamings per share allocaled to common shareholders of the Company

i based on the following figures:

The average number of cammon shares oulstanding during the year is calculated as follows

Common shares oulstanding al ihe beginning of
i yaar

impact of commos stock ssued during ihe year
Commen shares ae citutaling on averags in
The year

ekl ma T ——

Year of 2024 Year of 2023
VND VND
16,142,979,012 5,447 914,074
16,142, 879,012 5,447 914,074
15,848,083 8,241,107
1,019 873

Year of 2024 Year of 2023
Stack Stock
15,848,063 4,158,600

g 2,081,807

15,848,083 8,241,107

-
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DOMG NAI BUILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo, 2558 Pharm Van Thuan, Tan Mai Ward, Bien Haa Cily, Dong Nai Province, Visinam

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the fiscal year ended December 319, 2024

This e t& an infegral part o be read ( comunciion wilt the affached financial stalememns.

.10 Businoss & production expanses by factor

Yoar of 2024 Year of 2023
WD YD
Cost ol raw malerials and matenals 1,230,508, 704 BEZ 917,589
Labor expenses 24,618,822 569 26,004, 302 284
Depreciation expensas 26684 711,103 2,764 835,408
Expenses for oulsouncing 12,350,388 388 3,022,027 886
Oiher expensas 3,611,203, 793 15,041,722 678 |
44502644548 47,835,896,825
T ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS PRESENTED IN THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
T Precoeods from borrowing
Year of 2024 Yaar af 2023
WMD) WD

Collection af borrowings under ordinary contract 2,918,168,083,184 2 500 V44,858 564
7.2  Repaymaont of loan principal

Yaar of 2024 Year of 2023
WND VND
Repayment under ordinary loan _2929,163,306,956 _2,094,506,046,4T4

& FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The company passestes financial assels such as loans, accounts recaivable from Customers
and other recevables, cash, and deposits that arse directly from the company's operations. The
Campany's financial iabililies mainly include loans, irade payables and other payables. Main il
purpose of these financial kabilities is to mobilize financial resources to serve activities of the
COMpany

The company is exposed 1o marked nsk, credit risk, and liguidity nsk

Business risk managemeni s integral parl io fhe entire company's business activilies. The

mwwnmhmhmmmumﬂﬂ
incwrmed nisk cosis and cosis of risk managemenl. The Board of Managament conlinuously K.
moniters the risk managemant process to ensure 8 reasonable balance between risk and risk
cointrod,

The Board ol Management considars and agrees to consistently apply managemant policies for
the aforemantioned rsks as follows:

I Market risk

Market risk i tha risk thal the fairvalue of lulure cash fiows of a financial instrument will uciuate
with changes in market prices. Marke risk has four types of risk: interest rate risk, currency sk,
commodity prioe fsk and ather price risks, such as risk of slock prices.

interast rate risk

inlerest rate risk i U ek thal the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial insfrument will
luciuate with changes In market interes| rates. The Company's markel risk dus o nlanest rale
changes primarily perains 1o cash, short-term deposits, and the Company's borrowings.

e L ...



DOMG MAI BUILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
No. 2558 Pham Van Thuan, Tan Mai Ward, Bien Hoa Cily, Dong Nail Provinos, Viemam

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the lscal year ended December 317, 2024

This note is an ilegral part fo be read fm conjiecion with the atfached financisl sialemers

The company manages interes! rale nsk by analyzing ihe compeliive landscape in the market
i seours favorable inlerest rales for the company's objectives while remaining within its. risk
management limits.

Farsign GuTency nisk

Foreign curency risk is the risk thal the fair value of future cash Nows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate in response 1o changes in exchangs rates The Company is subject to risks arising
from fiuciuakions in exchange rates directly related to the Company's business opevations.

Risks refoled fo stock prices

The stocks hedd by ihe Company are affeciad by market risks ansing from the uncerainty
regarding the fulure value of ine mvestmant stocks. The company manages stock price risk by
sstablishing investment limids The Board of Management of the Company also reviews and
approves investment decisions in stocks The company assesses Ihe risk regarding the siock
price s negligible

i Crodii rish

Credit risk is the risk that a parly involved in a financial insirument or iransaction contract thal the
customer does nol perform his obligations leading to fmancial losses. The company has credit
risks from business activities (mainly with regard to recenvables customer) and its financial

Recsvables from ousiomens

The company reguiarly monitors outstanding receivables For large customers, the company
performe considering the decine in the credil quality of each customer al the reparting date. The
company seeks to maintain strict control cver outstanding receivables and aliocate personnel for
eredil conirol bo minimize credit rsk. Cn this basis and relations betwsen the cusiomer receivabie
and different customars, the credit risks is not signilicantly conceniraied on & certain customer

Bank deposis

The company mainly maintains the balance of deposits at the bank known n Vietnam. Credit nsk
with resgect to the balance of deposiis # the bank is managed by Treasury Depariment of the
company according 10 the company's policies The Company's maximum credil risk for balance
sheel llams al the end of the fiscal year is fhe carrying value as presented in Mote 5.1. It is fownd
that the conceniralion of credit nsk on bank deposits is low.

i, Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company has difficullies in implementing their financial
ohligations dus to lack of funds Liquidity risk of Company primasily arses from financial assels
and financial iabilities with differsnt matnities.

The company mitigates bquidity sk by maintaining & level of cash and cash equivalents, &5 well
as bank loans, that the Board of Managemen! considers sufficien! io meet the company's

The lable below summarizes lime limit for paymeant of the financial lisbilities of the company
basad on expected paymenis undes thi comract oblaining discount
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DONG MAI BUILDING MATERLAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo. 2558 Pham Van Thuan, Tan Mal Ward, Been Hoa City, Dong Na Province, Vietnam

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the fiecal yaar ended December 319, 2024

This riode is an integral part to be read i confanction wit ihe affached financial stalemenis

Less than 1 year From 1 to 6 years Total
VND YD VND
December 31, 2021
Payablas lo sellers 2,165, 115,757 - 2.168,116,757
Accrnued expenses 2,670,955,8970 - 2,670,955 870
Othar payables 2,860,192, 568 - 2 880,192 568
Deposits and Collateral Receipls - 5,163 586 667 5,163,566 667
Finance lease ioans and debt 5 B . 338 512,682 822 248
§15205,854.204  8.267.200,008 Sk s Tt
January 01, 2024
Payables 10 seliers 2,040,406, 768 - 2040406758
Accrued expanses 1,455 Gud 680 - 1,455 544 620
Chiher payables 2,061 T4B 428 - 2 501 746,428
Deposits amd Collateral Receipts - 4,m.m.u? i 593 566,667
Fmance lnase loans and detd 525 697,185,020 E!B,H‘H
_632,184,863,896 4,693,566,667

ﬁ-mhﬁm“hhﬂﬂmtmmiﬁmmtm.MM

has sufficient access lo the necessary capital resources.
ASSUranco propey

Thi company has it berm deposiis,

land 2z collatersl for leans (Moles 5.2, 5.3 5.8 510 H‘.

he. Fair value

{1} Companson of Fair Value and Camng Value

Book Valua
Dacambar 31, January 01,
024 2024
VND WND
Financial assets
b bo-mmaturity 258, 300,000,000 254,170,000,000
investrmanis
Recevables fram 99,273,024 163 81,764 266,880
CUSimaE
Oiher recevables 10,001,043, 981 9.182,072.416
deposiis, and guaraniess
financial assets
Cash and casht A7 620435 447 10,964 578 506
Oither long-tarm 10,000,000,000 10,000,000 000
mvesiments = -
_421,124,393,691 426,608,807,892
Financial liabllities
Financial hablliies are detarmined @ amortzed cost
Payables to seflers Z,185,116,757 2040 408 T58
Aconsad oxpenses 2,670,855 870 1,456,544 690
Oiher payables 2,880,192 568 2,991 746 428
Deposds and Collateral £_163 566 BET 4 592 566,667

Recaipls
Finance lease loans and 512 682 022 248 §25 697,166,020
deil

and pssels aitached io ihe

and 5.17).

Fair value (%)
Oecambar 31, January 01,
2024 2024
WND WND
258 300,000,000 294,170,000,000
93,020,904 388 86,834 157 416
10,001,043 981 9,182 072418
529,890,000 728 890,000
42 B20 435 447 19,964 578,588
9873314206  9,563,408,032
4147, 420,443,107,460
2,165,116,757 2 040,406 758
2 670,955 970 1,455 544 690
2,860,192 568 2,961 746,428
5,163 566,667 4,593 566,667
512,682,022 748 525697 166,020

_526,542,764,210 696,778,430,863 625,542,764,210 636,776,430,663

™ A .




DONG NAl BUILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo, 2558 Pham Van Thuan, Tan Mai Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nal Provinee, Vietnham

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for tha fiscal year ended Decembar 319 2024

This rcfe 18 an afigrad ot fo be read in conjuvietian with e atfachsd financia stalements

M

814

a1

Thee fair value of assels and financial Tabilfies was nol formally evalusted and determined on
December 31, 2024, and January 1, 2024, However, the Board of Managemen! assesses Ihal
the fair value of these assats and financial liabilibes does nol materaly ditfer from thelr caerying
valuss as of the and of the accounting peniod.

(2} Basis for defermining fair valle

Receivables frowm customers and other receivables

Tha fair value of accounts receivable from customers and olher receiwables, sxcluding

receivables and payables based on the progress of conslruction contract plans, is estimaled

based on the present vale of Litum cash flows, discountied at the market interest rate as of the

mmmm&mmmmmhhwﬂ
disciogire.

Non-derivative financlal labilities

Tha fair value, determined solely for dedosure purposes, is calculated based on the present
value of fulure cash flows of principal and interest, discounted at the markel interes) rale al he
end of the fiscal year.
. Risk Prevention

The company doas not apply a risk hedgng accounting policy
OTHER INFORMATION
Transactions and balanoes with related parties

Related parties of the Company include; key management membars, individuals involvad with
kay managEment members and ofter etated parties.

Transactions and balances with key management mambers and related individuals with
key management mambers

Incomes of key managemean! mambers ane as follows.

Year of 2024 Yaar of 2023
WND WND
Salary, bonus, remuneration
Board of Management [excluding
concurment members of the Board of
Directors)
M, Nguyen Haang Linh [hrecion 660, 500,000 628,670,000
M. Mguyen Thi Kim Canh Daputy Direcior 421,365 565 407 B70,000
Ms. Tran Thi Ai Lien Dreputy Director 427 530 585 -
Board of Diectors, Board of
Buperisors
Chairman of the 541,800,000 542 BOD, D00
Ms. Mguyen Thanh Hoa Board of Directors
Mr. La Minh Khue Member of Board of 120,000,000 120,000,000
Diraciors
Mr, Pharm Van Nam Memiber of Board of 35,000,000 120,000,000
Dereciors
Mamber of Board of 120,000,000 120,000,000
Mr. Wu Hoang Huynh Diraciors
Member of Board of 120,000,000 120,000,000

Mr. Mguyen Hoang Link Diirectors

a1
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OONG HAI BUILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Ma. 2558 Pham Van Thuan, Tan Mal Ward, Bien Hoa City, Deng Mal Province, Vielnam

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
far the fiscal yoar ended December 31, 2024

This rode is an infegral paid (o be read in conjurction with ihe altached financisl stalemenis

Member of Board of 85,000,000 3
Mr. Nguyen Van Chi Directors
Head of ihe Board of 80,000,000 80,000,000
Ms. Vu Thi Mai Phuong SUPBrVISOrS
Ms. Mguyen Thi Tham Member of Board of 54,000,000 54,000,000
Supervisons
Ms. Tran Thi Mgoc Anh Member of Board af 15,750,000 54,000,000
Supervisorns
Mr. Nguyen Quoc Duong Mamber of Board of 36,250,000
Suparvisors

812

821

572,308,430 _ 2,267,140,000
Tranzactions with key management persannel during the year are as follows:

Stakeholders Operations contonts de:ﬂwag Mﬂﬁ
M. Wu Hoang Huynh - Membar of the Board of Directors
Receipt of loans - 15,000, 000, 000
Loan repaymiant - 15,000,000, 000

Transactons and balances with other related parties
During the year, the Company primarily engaged in transactions with related companies as
follows:

Stakeholders Operations cenlents ‘F-fll:g Mﬂﬁ
Rang Dong Food Company Limited
Sale of goods - 44,098,774
Tay Nguyen Durian Joint Stock Company
Sale of goods 7,846 826 1,831,054
Long Thanh Jeint Stock Trading Company
Profits divided 203 537,000 585,620,000
Capital Contribution fod 1,400,266, 780 48.813,222.0998
Investmeni
Peisc Trading & Investmant Corporation - Vinh Long Branch - Petes Trading & Investmeant
Corpoaration
Purchase of goods 1,005,718,182 621,300,001
Department information
Division by business sector

The company operales in a single business kne of trading In petroleum products, lubricants,
liquefied petroleun gas and fuels

Parts by geagraphic area

The Company's aclivites take place throughout Vietnam, concentrsted In the provinces of the
Soulheasi region such as Dong Mai, Ho Chi Minh City, Binh Duong, Ba Ria - Vung Tau, Binh
Phuoe, sic

Events coourring after the balance sheet date

Mo significant events have ocourted after the amnd of the fiscal year (December 31, 2024) up lo
the time of preparing this Repart that would eguire adjustmants to the figuras oF declosure in
the financial statemenl.
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DONG Nl BUILDING MATERIAL AND FUEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo. 2558 Pham Van Thuan, Tan Mai Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Mai Province, Vietnam

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the fiscal year ended Decamber 314, 2024
This e 15 an wtegral part to be read i corgunction with the atteched fnancil slatemenis.

_{(Signad) Signed) = (Signed and sealad)
HGUYEN HOANG THAI TRONG WU THI KId THANH HGUYEN HOANG LINH
Fropared by Chief accountant Direotor

Dong Nai, dated March 10, 2025 ’




Toi, Bing Thi Hiln Mai, CCCD sb: 011300000005 do Cyc canh sit quén 1y hinh chinh v& 10 1 xi b cip
ngity 12/03/2022; eam doan dich chinh xic gidy 1/ vin bin niy tir tiéng Vigt sang tigng Anh.

I, Dang Thi Mien Mai, ID Card no. 011300000005 issued on 0203/2022 by Police Depariment for
Administrative Management of Social Order, comamii thai | exacily imnslated the conteni of this document from
Vieimamese lo English.

Fhmr,nﬂy”ﬂﬂuﬂ!ﬂniﬂii{ﬂwmﬂw mummmmhmml
Today, dated 17/03/2025 (on the seventeenth of thie year of two thousand and rwenty-five)
ﬁvummmﬂwmmmw Iiﬁ[hm‘u’ﬁ.phuﬁqﬂ#linh.qnhﬂﬁngﬂlﬂihh
uNmHunyﬂMm Address ot: No. 165 Giang Vo, Cat Linh Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi City.

- Cong chimg vién, trong pham vi tedch nhigm cia minh theo quy dinh
g, Hiop

- NOTARY PUBLIC, within the range of my responsibility as provided
for by luw,

- Bin dich nay do b Bing Thi HﬂnthﬂCmH 011300000005 do Cyc cinh a8t quin 1y hanh chinh vé& trit

b xi hi eip ngiy 02/03/2022, i chng tic vién philn dich cia Vin phimg Céng chimg Nguyln Hug, thanh phd
Ha Ngi, da dich tir tiéng Vigt sang tiéag Anh.
mmnmmm—-umwm Dang Thi Hien Mai, 11 Card no. 011 300000005
issued on 02/03/2022 by Police Department for Administrative Management of Social Order, is translation
collsborator of Mguyen Hue Notary Office, Hanai City.
- Chir ky trong bén djch ding 1 chit ky cia bd Bing Thi Hign Mai
- The signature on the document is the signature of Mrs. Dang Thi Hien Mai
- Nii dung cia ban dich chinh xée, khéng vi pham phip ludt, khémg trdi véi dgo dire xa hii;
- The contents of the translation are correct, compllant with the law and not against social morality;
= Vin bim efng chimg niy dwge Bp thinh 02 (hai) ban chinh, mdi bin gdm 48 t5, 48 trang, hoa 01 (mji)
mﬂvhmﬂmﬂnwmhmmwbmﬂﬂ

The notarized transiation is made into 02 (two) originals included 48 shoets, 48 pages, 01 (one) of which

ulq:inﬂguml-lmﬂmyﬂﬂh. City.
54 cing Y52 Quyidn sé: 01 72025 TPICC-SCC/BD
Notarization No.: Baok No.: 01 /2025 TP/CC-SCC/BD

CONG CHUNG VIEN
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